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BOARD'S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited,

The Directors hereby present their 20 Annual Report on the business, operations and the

state of affairs of the Company together with the audited financial statement for the year
ended March 31, 2017~

Financial Highlights (% in million)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Total Income 2,535.34 1,614.72
Total Expenditure 2,046.04 1,235.43
Profit before tax 489.30 379.29
Provision for tax (including Deferred Tax) 169.84 132.27 '
Profit after tax 319.46 247.02
Add: Profit and Loss account balance brought 259.80 62.19
forward from previous year
Profit available for appropriation 579.26 309.21
Transfer to Special Reserve under Section 45-IC of the 63.89 49.40
RBI Act, 1934
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 515.37 259.80

Dividend

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended March 31,
2017.0ut of profit for the year, ¥ 63.89 million has been transferred to Special Reserve under
Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 and the balance has been transferred to Reserves & Surplus.

Information on the state of affairs of the Company

Information on the operational and financial performance, among others, is given in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report as annexed to this Report as Annexure B
and is in accordance with the provisions of the RBI Circular Nos. RBI/2014-15/299 DNBR
(PD) CC.No.002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated November 10, 2014 and DNBR (PD} CC. No.
029/03.10.001/ 2014-15 April 10, 2015 on Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFC.

Holding /Subidiary Company

M/s. Edelcap Securities Limited (holding 76.66%) is the Holding Company of the Company.,
M/s Edelweiss Financial Services Limited is holding 14.24% equily of the C ompany, which is
also holding 100 % equity of Ecap Equities Limited who in turn holds 100 % equity in. Edeleap
Securities Limited. Indirectly, Company is a subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services
Limited. The Company cloes not have any subsidiary ar Associate Company:,

Edelweiss Retaif Finance Limited
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Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.ST Read, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra ©+91 224009 4400 & +91 22 4019 4525
www.edelweissretailfin.com :



@Edelweiss

ldeas create, values protect
Share Capital
During the year under review, the Company had allotted 30,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 for

cash at a premium of ¥ 78 per share to Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited on August 31, 2016
on Private placement basis,

Consequently, the Paid-up Share Capital and Authorised Share Capital of the Company
stands at ¥ 329.50 million and ¥ 500 million respectively.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

In respect of privately placed Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD}, no Debenture Redemption
Reserve (DRR) is required in terms of the clarification issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
by Notification dated June 18, 2014 as the Company is registered as Non-Banking Finance
Company with Reserve Bank of India,

There were Nil non-convertible debentures which have not been claimed by the Investors or

not paid by the Company after the date on which the non-convertible debentures became due
for redemption.

Finance

Your Company continued to borrow funds from various Banks. The Company enjoys credit
rating from various Rating Agencies. The credit ratings reflect the Company’s {inanciat
discipline and prudence. The details of the credit ratings are furnished in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

Loans, Investments and Guarantees

Particulars of loans given and investments made are provided in the Noles to the Financial
Statements. During the year under review, the Company has given guarantee amounting to ¥
364.68 million as credit enhancement for Unsecured Business Loans pool SLulrm/ed by the
Company.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company

There has been no Material changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the financial position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company
to which the financial statement relate (i.e. March 31, 2017) and the date of the report L.e. May
16, 2017.

Extract of the Annual Return

In accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
framed thereunder, the extract of the Annual Return in the prescribed Form MGT - 9 is
provided in Annexure A to this Report.

Related Party Transactions

The particulars of contracts or arraﬁgements with reIat‘ed'parties referred to in Section 188 (1)
of Act are provided in the Form AGC-2 under Annexure~C which forms part of this Report.
All the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company are on arm’s length basis and in

Edelweiss Retall Finance Limited
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the ordinary course of business. All the Related Party Transactions as required under AS-18
are reported in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The company has also framed the related party transaction policy in this regard and copy of
the same is enclosed and marked as Annexure-C.1. The Policy is uploaded on the Company's
website at the link: https:/ / www .edelweissretailfin.com

Internal Control System and Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place adequate internal financial control with reference to financial
statement. The Company also has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size,
scale and complexity of its operations,

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

1. Board of Directors

At present the Board of Directors consists of Mr. Mitul Bhagvandas Shalh,
Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah, Mr. Anil Kothuri, Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth and Ms.
Shalinee Mimani.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Independent Directors have given requisite declaration that they meet the
criteria of independence as provided in the said section.

ii. Retirement by Rotation of the Directors
Mr. Anil Kothuri retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

jii. Key Managerial Personnel

The Company has following persons Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the

Company as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules
framed thereunder:-

Mr. Arun Kumar Nayyar - Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Vineet Mahajan - Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Sudipta Majumdar - Company Secretary

Board Meetings

During the financial year 2016-17, four (4) board meetings were held: May 12, 2016, August 6,
2016, November 8, 2016 and February 8, 2017. The inter vening gap between the meetings was
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Committees of the Board

The following are 9 Committees constituted by the Board:

i) Audit Committee;

ii) Risk Management Committee;

ii@de]weiéﬁ&gﬁ Lfiél?ééi%%ﬁ“ag@me“t COMittee;
Corporate {dentity Number: U67120MH1997P1.C285490
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iv) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;
V) Nomination & Remuneration Committee;
vi) Operations Committee;

vil)  Resource Mobilization Committee;

viii)  Investment Committee;

ix) Identification Committee; and

x) Review Committee.

The Composition of Board and Committees were as under:

S. Name Designation
No.
1 Mr. Mitul Bhagvandas Shah Independent Director
2 Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah Independent Director
3 Mr. Anil Kothuri Non-Executive Director
4 Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth Non-Executive Director
5 Ms. Shalinee Mimani Non-Executive Diractor

S.

No. Name of the Committee Composition
1. | Audit Comnmittee 1. Mr. Anil Kothuri

2. Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah
3. Mr. Mitul Bhagvandas Shah

2. | Risk Management Committee Mr. Anil Kothuri

Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

. Shalinee Mimani

e 00 |1 [
=
[44]

Mr. Vineet Mahajan

Mr. Arun Kumar Nayvyar

. Karthik Balasubramanian

R IR
-
=

Mr. Sachin Bawari

3. | ALCO Committee Mr. Anil Kothuri

Mr, Krishnaswamy Siddharth
. Arun Nayyar

Mr. Vineet Mahajan

Ms. Shalinee Mimani

Mr. Vikas Mohan Srivastava

o1 [ o [P
=
-

. Karthik Balasubramanian
Mr. Sanjay Mishra

0 ||~ o
=
5

Mr. Sachin Bawari
10. Ms. Sudipta Majumdar

4. | Nomination & Remuneration : ‘
Committee 1. Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah

2. Mr. Mitul Bhagvandas Shal
3. Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

Edelweiss Retall Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
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Corporate Social Responsibility
Comumnittee

- Anil Kothuri

. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

Rl RN

. Sanjay Nathalal Shah

Operations Committee

. Anii Kothuri

. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

L e

. Shalince Mimani

Resource Mobilization Committee

—

. Anil Kothuri

. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

g

. Vineet Mahajan

Investment Committee

. Anil Kothuri

. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

. Vineet Mahajan

Ll Bl e

. Arun Nayvyar

Identification Committee

. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

. Shalinee Mimani

e

r. Sachin Bawari

10.

Review Committee

—

. Arun Kumar Nayyar

I

. Mitul Bhagvandas Shah

- Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah

Committee Meetings

Table containing details of meetings of Board and various committees along with dates are

as below:

S. No

Board/ Committee Name

No. of -

Date of Meetings

meetings

Board Meetings (BM)

4

May 12, 2016
August 06, 2016
November 08, 2016
February 08, 2017

Audit Committee (ACM)

November 08, 2016

May 12, 2016
August 06, 2016

February 08, 2017

Risk Committee (RMC)

Edelwelss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Registered Office: Edelwelss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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4 ALCO Committee (ALCO) 10 May 13, 2016
June 10, 2016
August 10, 2016
September 13, 2016
October 14, 2016
November 14, 2016
December 19, 2016
January 12, 2017

February 17, 2017

March 16, 2017
May 12, 2016
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee February 06, 2017

5 {CSR) 2
6 Operations Committee (OC) 8 April 22, 2016
June 24, 2016

August 06, 2016
August 31, 2016
October 10, 2016
November 08, 2016
February 08, 2017

| March 21, 2017 |
Note: No meetin ¢ held for Nomination & Remnmmneration Connmitiee, Resource Mobilizalion Connmnitiee,
Investment Committee, ldentification Conmittee and Review Commiitiee,

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS/MEMBERS AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

As per Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Director ('S5-17)
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India ('ICSI'), the attendance of Directors at
Board and Commiittee meetings held during the financial year 2016-17 is provided as under:

Name of BM ACM RMC ALCO CSR | oC
Director H | A A H A 'THTA H JA |H Ta
Anil Kothuri 4 4 4 4 4 3 10 7 2 2 8 8
K. Siddharth 4 2 | NA! NA 4 2 10 8 2 1 8 7
Shalinee 4 4 | NA | NA 4 4 10 10 i NA | NA 8 8
Mimani :

Mitul 4 4 4 4 NA NA | NA: NA | Na NA NA NA
Bhagvandas

Shah

Sanjay 4 4 4 4 NA NA | NA | NA 2 1 NA NA
Nathalal J
Shah

H- Held: A- Attended

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number; UG7120MH1997PLC285490

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, OH. C.5.T Road, Kalinz, Mumbai-400058,Maharashira ©+91 22 40094400 ® +91 22 4019 4525
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Remuneration Policy

The Company has framed a Remuneration Policy pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The
Policy is provided as an Annexure D to this Report.

Evaluatign of the Performance of the Board

The Board has formulated an Evaluation Policy (the Policy) for evaluating the performance of
the Board, Managing Director, Executive Directors, Independent Directors, Non-executive
Directors and its Committees. Based on the same, the performance was evaluated for the
financial year ended March 31, 2017.

The Policy inter alia provides the criteria for performance evaluation such as Board
effectiveness, quality of discussion, contribution at the meetings, business acumen, strategic
thinking, time commitment, relationship with the stakeholders, corporate governance
practices, contribution of the Committees to the Board in discharging its functions, etc.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), your Directors confirm that:-

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed;

(ii) we had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017 and
of the profit of the Company for the financial year ended on that date;

(i)  proper and sufficient care had been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(iv)  the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(v)  internal financial controls have been laid down and the same are adequate and
were operating effectively; and

(vi)  we have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Audit Committee

The Audit Comumittee of the Board of Directors of the Company compriscs of the following
Directors:-

Mr. Mitu] Bhagvaridas Shah - Independent Director

Edelweiss Retail Fit¥hte aijaly Nathalal Shah - Independent Director

Corporate |dentity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285420

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra ®+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
www.edelweissretailfin.com . :
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Mr, Anil Kothuri - Non Executive Director

The majority of the members of the Committee are Independent Directors and have financial
management expertise. The constitution and terms of reference of the Committee are in
compliance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR. Committee)

In accordance with the provisions of the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Company has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(CSR Committee) comprising of the following Directors as its meisnbers:-

Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah - Independent Director
Mr. Anil Kothuri - Non Executive Director
Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth - Non Execulive Director

The constitution and terms of reference of the CSR Committee include the matters specified
in Section 135 of the Act.

The CSR Policy of the Company is uploaded on www.edelweissretailfin.com. Further details
in this regard are provided in Annexure E to this Report.

The Company is a subsidiary of Edelcap Securities Limited and it is a subsidiary of Edelweiss
Financial Services Limited. Edelweiss group is conscious of its Cor porate Social Responsibility
and, had accordingly established a CSR arm, “EdelGive Foundation” in the year 2008. As an
amount of Rs. 115.68 million (representing more than 2% of the consolidated profit of the
group) was spent towards CSR activities during the year ended Murch 31,2017, the Company

has not incurred the prescribed CSR expundxtme ona standalom basis during the year ended
March 31, 2017.

Auditors & Auditors Report

The members of the Company at the 17t Annual General- Meeting (AGM) of the Company ™~ =

held on August 4, 2014, had appointed BS R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the
Auditors of the Company till the conclusion of the 20t AGM of the Company to be held in the
year 2017, subject to ratification of their appointment at every AGM.

They have shown their unwillingness for their re-appointment at ensuing Annua! General
Meeting. Board accordingly recommends the appointment of M/s Price Waterhouse LLP as
statutory auditors of the Company for period of 5 years subject to I'ElleiCﬂthI‘l of their
appointment in every annual general meeting.

The Company has received the consent from the Auditors and corfirmation to the effect that
they are not disqualified to be appointed as the Auditors of the Company in terms of the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

The Auditors’ Report is without any qualification, adverse remark, reservation or disclaimer.
The observations of the Auditors in their report read together with the Notes on Accounts are

Edelwelss Retail Finance Limited

Corpaorate ldentity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
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self-explanatory and therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, do not call for any further
explanation,

Secretarial Audit

The Board had appointed M/s. Sanjay Grover & Associates, Company Secretaries, as
Secretarial Auditor, to conduct the secretarial audit for the financia] year ended March 31,
2017. The Report of the Secretarjal Auditor is provided as an Annexure F to this Report.

Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace

The Company has framed a Policy on Prevention of Sexual lHarassment at workplace. There
were no cases reported during the year ended March 31, 2017 under the Policy.

Disclosure pertaining to Remuneration
Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is enclosed with this re port as Annexure-
G&G1.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings / Outgo
A, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(i)  the steps taken or impact on conservation of erer gy - The operations of your
Company are not energywintensiw. However, adéquate measures have bheen
initiated for conservation of energy.

(i)  the steps taken by the Company for utilising uiternate source of energy - though
the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company shall
explore alternative source of energy, as and when the necessity arises.

(i)  the capital investment on energy conservation equipments - Nil

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption - The minimum technology
required for the business has been absorbed.

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvemeni, cost reduction, product development
or import substitution - Not Applicable o 7
iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three vears reckoned from
P gy (mp & ¥
the beginning of the financial year) - Not Applicable
(a) the details of technology imported;
(b) the year of import;
() whether the technology been fully absorbed; and
(d)  if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and
the reasons thereof

(iv)  the expenditure incurred on Research and Development - Not Applicable
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumba| 400098 Maharashtra &+91 22 4009 4400 ® +61 22 4019 4925
www.edelweissretailfin.com . e
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under review, there were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo (previous
year: nil}.

QOther Disclosure

No disclosure is required in respect of the details relating to the deposits covered under
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013, issue of Equity Shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise, sweat Equity Shares, as there were no transactions on these
matters during the year ended March 31, 2017. There were 110 significant or material order
passed by any regulator or court or tribunal which would impact the status of the Company
as a going concern and the operations in future.

Risk Management

The Risk Management Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company has
framed and implemented a Risk Management Policy.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy for employess Lo report genuine
concerns/grievances, The Policy provides for the adequate safeguards against the
victimization of the employees who use the vigil mechanism. The vigil mechanism is overseen
by the Audit Committee. -

Resource Mobilization

Your Company continued to borrow funds in the form of Term loan and Working Capital
from banks and in the form of Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on private placement
basis.

Your Company has been able to avail new long term loans from Banks amounting to Rs. 1,750
million with tenor up to 5 years. '

Your Company has striven to work within the ALM requirements as prescribed by Reserve
Bank of India (RBI} and approved by the Board.

Non-Convertible Debentures {NCDs)

During the year under review, no new NCDs were issued during the year.

During the year under review, NCDs amounting to Rs. 200 crores were due for redemption,
which have been redeemed by your Company on its due date.

Edelwelss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285450
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Subordinate Debt

During the year under review, your Company also completed “issuance of Unsecured
Subordinate Non-Convertible Debenture aggregating to Rs. 120 million on a private
placement basis. The NCDs are listed on BSE. The Subordinate Debt issuance is for a tenor of
10 years and the issuance has helped to augment the long term capital requirements of your

Company. During the year under review, NCDs were neither due nor outstanding for
redemption.

Ratings
Your Company’s long term and short term debt instruments and bank loans are rated by
Brickworks, ICRA and CARE, which are as under:

Nature of Borrowing CRA. = |\ 'CARE ' | Brickwork
Short Term Debt Al+ Al+ -
Non-Convertible Debentures AA/Stable AA BWR AA+
Bank Loan Facilities AA/Stable AA -

Sub Debt AA/Stable AA -

Securitization of Loans

During the current year, your Company entered into securitization transaction through PTC 5
route of Unsecured Business Loans amounted to Rs. 3,298.44 million. Your Company plans to 5'
securitize regularly going forward.

Branch Expansion

During the year under review, the Company opened 5 new branch offices and as at March 31,
2017, the Company had network of 20 branches.

Public Deposits

The Company did not accept any public deposits during the year under review. Therefore, “
the disclosures as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder
and RBI Directions are not applicable.

Statutory Disclosures

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified as per provision of section 164(2) of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Directors of the Company have made necessary disclosures, as
required under various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Human Resource-Initiatives

During the year under review, a Iot of focus was given o engaging employees at the branch
level by conducting structured interactions at the branch manager level and sharing the
company’s long term perspective and their role within, New behavioural training programs

were introduced to widen the scope of learning and development activity. The employee
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Cerperate (dentity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
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engagement survey done at the corporate level continued to reveal high scores strengthening
our value of people first even further.
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Annexure A

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 315t March, 2017
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

Registration Date
Name of the Company

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Address of the Registered office and contact
details

Whether listed company Yes/ No

Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Ub7120MH1997PLC285490

February 18, 1997
EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE
LIMITED

Category: Public Company limited by
shares
Subcategory: Indian Non-government

Company
Edelweiss House, Off CST. Road,
Kalina,Mumbai- 400098 Maharashtra;

Tel: +91 22 4009 4400; Fax:+91 22
40194925;

E-mail: Rfcompliance@edelweissfin.com

Website: www.edelweissretailfin.com

The Non-convertible Debentures of the
Company are listed on BSE Limited

Link Intime India Private Limited -

C 101, 247 Park , L. B S Marg, Vikhroli
West, Mumbai 400 083, Maharashtra,
India;

Tel No: +91 22 49186000

Fax: +91 22 49186060
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IL PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall
be stated:-

Sl | Name and Description | NIC Code of the Y% to total turnover of the
No. | of Product/ service Company

main products /

services
. Financing activity 649 9222

# As per National Industrial Classification- Ministry of Statistics and Programnie Implementation
$ On the basis of Gross Income

IIL. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
Sr. | Name and Address of | CIN/GLN Holding/ | %of | Applicable

No | the Company Subsidiary/ | shares ; Section
Associate | held

1 Edelcap Securities | U67120AP2008PLC057145 Holding 76.66 | 2(46)
Limjted(ESL)
Address:2nd Floor,
MB Towers, Plot No 5,
Road No 2, Banjara
Hills, Hyderabad -
500034

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total .
Equity) e

i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning | No. of Shares held at the end of the %
Shareholders of the year year Change
during
the year
De | Physical | Total % | De | Physical | Total Y of
ma of Ima total
t , total | t Shares
Sha
res

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual - - - - -
/HUF

b) Central Govt - - B _ ; : ——

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1897PLC285430

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Cff. C.5.T Read, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra ©+91 22 4009 4400 F +91 22 4019 4525
www.edelweissretailfin.com :



[7) State Govt (s)

T

O

ldea

Edelweiss

S create, values protect

| d) Body corporate

29,950,000

29,950,000

32,950,000

32,950,000

@) Banks / FI

d) Any other

Sub-total (A) (1):-

29,950,000

29,950,000

32,950,000

32,950,000

| (2) Foreign

a) NRIs -
Individuals

b} Other -
Individuals

c) Bodies
Corparate

d) Banks / HI

e) Any Other

Sub-total (A) (2):-

Total
shareholding
of Promoter
(A) =(A))+
(A)(2)

29,950,000
*

29,950,000
*

100 -

32,950,000
*

32,950,000

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

| b} Banks / FI

B E—

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

' g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture

Capital Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-
2

on-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corporate

Indian

Overseas

b) Individuals

* Individual
shareholders
holding
neminal
share capital

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: UB7120MH1997PLC285490

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off, £.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharas

www.edehweissretailfin.com

htra ©+91 22 4009 4400 ® 491 22 4019 4925
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upto Rs. 1 - - - - - - .
fakh

* Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
in excess of
Rs. 1 lakh

¢} Others - - - - - -
(specify)
Sub-total (B){2):- | - - - - - -
Total Public - - - - - - .
Shareholding

B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held - - - - - .

by Custodian

for GDRs &

ADRs
Grand Total - 29,950,000 29,950,000 | 100 - 32,950,000 32,950,000 100 Nil
(A+B+() *

* Includes six individual shareholders who are holding one share each as nominee of Edelcap Securities
Limited.

(i} Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholder’ | Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the end of the
s Name of the year Year
No. Of % of % of No. of % of Yoof % change
Shares Total Shares Shares Total | Shares In share
Shares of | Pledged/ Shares | Pledged/ | holding
the Encumber of the | encumber | during
company | ed to total compa | edtototal | the year
shares ny shares

Edelcap 25,258,333 84.34 Nil | 25,258,333 76.66 Nil (7.68)

Securities

Limited*

Edelweiss 4,691,667 15.66 Nil | 4,691,667 14.24 Nil (1.42)

Financial

Services

Limited

Edelweiss Nil - - | 30,00,000 9.10 Nil 9.10

Finvest

Private

Limited

Total 29,950,000 100 Nil | 32,950,000 100 Nil Nil

* Includes six individual sharcholders who are holding one share each as nominee of Edelcap Securities
Limited.

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MRB1957PLC285490

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra @+91 37 4009 4400 ®+9122 4019 4525
www.edelweissretailfin.com
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SL Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of o of total
shares of the | shares shares of the
company company
1 Edelcap Securities Limited
At the beginning of the 25,258,333 84.34 25,258,333 76.66
year
Date wise Increase Allotment of (7.68) NA (7.68)
/Decrease in Promoters 30,00,000 equity
Shareholding during the | shares on
year specifying the August 31,2016 to
reasons for increase Edelweiss Finvest
/decrease (e.g. allotment | Private Limited
/transfer /bonus/ sweat
equity etc)
At the End of the year 2,52,58,333 84.34 2,52,58,333 76.66
2 Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
At the beginning of the 46,91,667 15.66 46,91,667 15.66
ear
Date wise Increase Allotment of (1.42) NA (1.42)
/ Decrease in Promoters 30,00,000 equity
Shareholding during the | shares on
year specifying the August 31,2016 to
reasons for increase Edelweiss Finvest
/decrease (e.g. allotment | Private Limited
/transfer /bonus,/ sweat
equity etc).
At the End of the year 46,91,667 14.24 46,91,667 14.24
3 Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
At the beginning of the - - - -
year
Date wise Increase Allotment of 910 | Allotment of 9.10
/ Decrease in Promoters | 30,00,000 equity 30,00,000
Shareholding during the | shares on August equity shares
year specifying the 31,2016 to on August
reasons for increase Edelweiss Finvest 31,2016 to
/ decrease (e.g. allotment | Private Limited Edelweiss
/transfer /bonus/ sweat Finvest
equity etc). Private
Limited
At the End of the year 30,00,000 5.10 30,00,000 9.10

Includes six individual shareholders who are

Linited,

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997P1C285490
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai- 400098, Maharashtra (+91 22 40084400 § +91 22 4019 4925
www.edelweissretailfin.com

holding one share each as nominee of Edelcap Securities
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O

(other than Directors, Promoters and

At the beginning of the
ear

Date wise Increase

/Decrease in Promoters

Shareholding during the

year specifying the

reasons for increase

/ decrease (e.g. allotment

/transfer / bonus/ sweat

equity etc),

Y% of tota]

Cumulative Shareholdin g
during the year !

% of total
shares of the

|
company |
|

s of the

8434 | 2,52,58333

SL | Shareholding at the beginning
No, of the year
For each of the Top ten No. of shares
shareholders share
_—
1 Edelcap Securities Limited+
At the beginning of the 25,258,333
ear
Date wise Increase Allotment
/ Decrease in Promoters 30,00,000  equity
Shareholding during the . | shares on
year specifying the August 31,2016 to
reasons for increase Edelweiss Finvest
/decrease (e.g. allotment Private Limited
/transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc)
At the End of the year 2,52,58,333
2 Edelweiss Financial Servic

%

Allotment of
30,00,000 equity
shares on

August 31,2016 to
Edelweiss Finvest
Private Limited

At the End of the year

At the beginning of the
year

Date wise Increase
/Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase

/ decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat

equity etc).

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Allotment of
30,00,000 equity
shares on August
31,2016 to
Edelweiss Finvest
Private Limited

At the End of the year

es Limited i
46,91,667 15.66 Il 46,91,667 ] 15.66

i |

|

NA

!
H
|

|
|
o
l [

(1.42)T
|
|
{

’ |
46,91,667 14.24 46,91,667 14.24 i
T

Allotment of
30,00,000
equity shares
on August
31,2016 to
Edelweiss
Finvest
Private
Limited

30,00,000

*Includes six individunl shareholders

Limited,

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997pLC285490

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5T Road, Kalina,
www.edelweissretailfin.com

9.10

—_—

9.10 |

30,00,000

who are holding one share ¢

ach as nominee of Edelmp Securities

Mumbai-400098,Mzharashtra @+91 22 4005 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
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SI. Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
No. of during the
the year Year
For Each of the No. of shares | Y% of total No. of % of total
Directors and shares of the shares shares of the
KMrP company company
At the beginning
of the year
Date wise Increase
/Decrease in
Shareholding
during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
specifying the

reasons for
increase /decrease
(e.g. allotment

/transfer /bonus/
sweat equity etc);
At the End of the
year
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/acerued but not due for
payment (( in million)
Secured Loans | Unsecur Deposits | Total
excluding ed Indebtedness
deposits Loans
Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year
*  Principal Amount 10,243.57 526.11 - 10,769.68
* Interest due but not paid 545 1.70 - 7.16
* Interest accrued but not 291.65 13.68 - 305.3
due
Total (i+ii+iii) 10,540.67 541.49 - 11,082.16
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year
* Additon 1624.38 488.33 - 2112.71
* Reduction (2088.13) - - (2088.13)
Net Change (463.75) 488.33 24.58
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
* Principal Amount 9926.11 992.47 - 10918.58

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number; UB7120MH1997PLL285490

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, OFff, C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,M

www.edelweissretailfin.com

aharashtra ©+91 22 40094400 (B +91 22 4019 4925
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*  Interest due but not paid - - - -
* Interest accrued but not 150.81 37.35 - 188.16
due
Total (i+ii+iii) 10076.92 | 1029.82 - 11106.74 |

V1. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:-NIL

S1. no, | Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount
Managing | Whole Time Total
Director Director/Manager

1. ! Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained - - -
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - -
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2. | Stock Option - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - | _

4. | Commission - iy -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5. | Others, please specify (Bonus) - - -

Total (A) - -

Ceiling as per the Act *

* In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder and the

Circulars issued thereunder, the remuneration paid to the Managing Directors and the Executive Directors
is within the ceilings prescribed,

B. Remuneration to other directors: (% in million)
Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount |
1. Independent Directors Mr. Mitul Shah | Mr.Sanjay Shah

* Fee for attending board / 0.18 (.18 (.36

committee meetings

» Commission - - -

* Others, please specify - -

Total (1) 0.18 0.18 0.36

2, Other Non-Executive Directors | - - -

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Carporate identity Number: U§7120MH1997PLC285490

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off, C.5T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4008 4400 ®+91 22 4019 4925
www.edelweissretaiifin.com :
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¢ Fee for attending board / - - -
committee meetings

¢ Commission - -

» Others, please specify - -

Total (2) - -

Total (B)=(1+2) 0.18 0.18 0.36

Total Managerial - - 0.36
Remuneration(A+B)

Overall Ceiling as per the Act Refer note

Note: The total managerial remuneration within the ceilings prescribed.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:( (. in million)

Sl. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
no. Remuneration
CEO CFO Company Total
Mr, Arun Mr. Vineet Secretary
Kumar Nayyar | Mahajan Ms.Sudipta
Majumdar

1. | Gross salary

(a) | Salary as per
provisions contained | 14.32 10.67 0.52 25.51
in sec. 17(1) of the

Income-tax Act,1961

(b} | Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) Income-tax 0.026 - 0.026
Act, 1961

(c) | Profits in lieu of - - - - o
salary under section @
17(3) Income-tax Act, .
1961

2. | Stock Option - - - -

i

Sweat Equity - - - -

4. | Commission - - - - -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5. | Others, please - - - _
specify

Total 14.32 10.696 0.52 25.536

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: UB71200MHK1957PLC285490

Registered Office; Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @491 22 4005 4400 © +91 22 4019 4925
www.edelweissretailfin.com ) :
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VIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of | Brief Details of Penalty / Authorit | Appeal
the Description | Punishment/Compound | y [RD/ made, if
Companies ing fees imposed NCLT/ any
Act COURT] | (give
Details)
A, COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Anil Kothiri K SiddHarth
Director Director
DIN: 00177945 DIN: 02463804
Mumbai, May 16, 2017

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: UG7120MH1997PLC285490

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Katina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 (B +G1 22 4019 4925
www.edelweissretailfin.com
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (ERFL)
FY2016-17

Management Discussion & Analysis Report

MACRO-ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

FY17 was an eventful year both economically and
politically for the global economy. On the political
side, Brexit fears and US Presidential elections were
two big events though the markets shrugged off
these developments soon. Global trade flows have
rebounded, Purchasing Managers’ Indices (PMls)
have picked up across the board, and consumer &
business confidence has recovered globally.

The Indian economy is back on growth trajectory,
inflation remains benign and fiscal and current
account position remains comfortable. FDI flows
continue to remain buoyant at USD 36bn and
portfolio flows too have returned to USD 8bn in FY17
after an outflow of USD 2.5bn in FY16. What is most
encouraging is that India’s exports finally emerged
from 2 years of contraction with a 5% growth in FY17
after contracting nearly 16% In FY16.

On the monetary side, RBI has moved to neutral
stance from accommodative and hence chances of
further rate cut remain low. INR has benefitted from
strong FDI flows with RBI staying away from
intervention in the forex market.

Overall the macro-fundamentals of the economy
remain strong and the business cycle conditions
have improved. Rebound in exports, improving
corporate  earnings, good monsoons and
government’s continued push towards
infrastructure, rural development and affordable

housing augur well for FY18.

Commercial Credit Markets

Indian banking sector growth slowed during FY17
(non-food credit at ~5%), as capex cycle is yet to pick
up and incrementally financing is shifting from banks
to financial markets — commercial paper, corporate
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bond markets etc., which will keep corporate credit
growth subdued. Additionally, asset quality pressure
continues unabated. While large part of NPA
recognition seems to have been done, the resolution
is still a missing link. Hence, the profitability of PSU
banks continued to be under strain and will recover
only gradually over the medium term.

NBFC Industry

While commercial banks continued to remain
dominant source of credit in India, NBFCs are gaining
significant ground. While the banking sector was
beset with worsening asset quality in FY17, NBFCs
could restrict the impact in their portfolios due to
their ability to respond quickly as well as availability
of a higher collateral cover. The growing relevance
and interconnectedness of the NBFC sector also
highlights the importance of risk management in the
sector. Going ahead, comfortable capitalisation
levels and conservative liquidity management will
continue to support the credit profile of NBFCs.

Retail Finance

While corporate credit growth continues to be slow,
retail segment continues to maintain momentum.
NBFCs and HFCs continue to scale up their portfolio
focusing on housing finance, LAP, SME finance and
consumer finance. Within these segments, housing
continues to do well and also presents huge
potential given the government thrust for housing
for all and supporting demographic factors. The
other large opportunity is SME segment which
continues to be under-banked and NBFCs are
increasingly turning towards this sector. Thus, the
potential for NBFCs and HFCs to scale up their
business remains large providing ample growth
opportunities to lenders like us.
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EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE
LIMITED OVERVIEW

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (ERFL) was formerly
known as Affluent Dealcom Private Limited (ADL)
which was incorporated on February 18, 1997. It was
an NBFC registered with the Reserve Bank of India
bearing Registration number 05.03052 authorised to
commence/carry on the business of a non-banking
financial institution subject to the conditions given in
the Certificate. The Company was acquired by
Edelcap Securities Limited (ESL) and was converted
into a public limited company with the name
changed to “Affluent Dealcom Limited” on receipt of
a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent to
change in status on January 1, 2014 from the
Registrar of Companies, West Bengal. Subsequently
the Company’s name was changed to “Edelweiss
Retail Finance Limited” pursuant to fresh certificate
of Incorporation dated January 6, 2014.

Subsequently, ERFL obtained a Certificate of
Registration dated October 14, 2014 bearing
Registration no. B-05.03052 issued by the Reserve
Bank of India under section 45IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, to commence/carry on the
business of a non banking financial institution
without accepting public deposits subject to the
conditions mentioned in the Certificate of
Registration.

The registered office of the Company was shifted
from the state of West Bengal to Maharashtra
pursuant to Certificate of Registration of Regional
Director order for Change of State dated September
2, 2016 and fresh Certificate of Registration dated
January 4, 2017 bearing Registration no. B-13.02149
has been issued by the Reserve Bank of India,
Mumbai.

It is a systemically important NBFC (NBFC — ND - SlI).

We are part of the Edelweiss Group which is one of
India’s prominent financial services organization
having businesses organized around three broad
business groups — Credit businesses including Retail
Credit, Corporate Credit and Distressed Assets
Resolution business, Franchise businesses including
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Wealth Management, Asset Management and
Capital Markets, and Life Insurance.

Today, ERFL is a Rs.14 billion asset base company
with presence in all the significant areas of retail
finance businesses including SME finance, Loan
against Property and Rural Finance.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of our FY17 financial highlights is as
under:
e Total Revenue Rs.2,535 million (Rs.1,615
million for FY16), up 57%
e Profit after Tax Rs.319 million (Rs.247
million for FY16), up 29%
e Networth as per Balance Sheet Rs.3,135
million (Rs.2,600 million at the end of FY16)
e Return on Average Equity 10.88% (13.48 %
for FY16)
e EPS Rs.10.08 (Rs.12.28 for FY16) (FV Rs.10
per share)

Fund Based Revenue

Our fund-based businesses earned revenue of
Rs.2,348 million for FY17 (Rs.1,534 million for FY16),
up 53%. Out of this, interest income was Rs.2,338
million (Rs.1,533 million for FY16). Thus, almost all of
the fund based revenue comprises of interest
earnings.

Agency Fee & Commission

Our agency fee & commission revenue was Rs.187
million for the year, compared to Rs.81 million in
FY16, up 131%.

Net Revenue

For NBFCs, like banking industry, the concept of Net
Revenue (net of interest cost) is another way of
analyzing performance. This is because interest cost,
as with all Banks and large NBFCs/HFCs, should
reflect above the expenses line. On a net revenue
basis, our Agency fee & commission for FY17 was
Rs.187 million (Rs.81 million for FY16) and Fund
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based net revenue, i.e. net of interest cost, all the
interest cost being for fund based revenue, was
Rs.1,187 million (Rs.741 million for FY16). Thus the
total net revenue for FY17 was Rs.1,374 million
(Rs.822 million for FY16), up 67%.

Our total costs for FY17 was Rs.2,046 million (Rs.
1,235 million in FY16), up 66%. Within our total
costs, operating expenses accounted for Rs.666
million in FY17 (Rs.392 million for FY16) as we
continued to invest in building our business and
infrastructure. Our employee expenses increased
from Rs.49 million in FY16 to Rs.216 million in FY17
as we added about 123 employees during the year
taking our total headcount to 224 at the end of FY17.
As regards interest expense which grew from Rs.793
million in FY16 to Rs.1,161 million in FY17, our
borrowings at the end of FY17 were Rs.10,860
million compared to Rs. 10,770 million at the end of
FY16. The scale up of our assets size via a higher
borrowing as well as average level of borrowings
during FY17 being higher resulted in this increase in
the interest cost.

Our Profit after Tax for FY17 was Rs.319 million
compared to Rs.247 million for FY16, up 29%.

Our Profit before Tax margin for FY17 was 19% and
Profit after Tax margin 13% compared to 23% and
15% respectively for FY16. Margins have suffered
slightly during FY17 due to a higher equity base
arising out of equity infusion in ERFL during FY17 to
take care of future growth.

Analysis of Profitability

We have demonstrated growth in profitability aided
by the following factors:

e  Our Credit book grew to Rs.14,737 million
at the end of FY17 compared to Rs.13,959
million at the end of FY16. However, the
average loan book during the year was
higher. At the same time, the average vyield
on loans booked during FY17 was higher
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than that in the past. This improved our
interest income from loans in FY17.

e Our fee and commission income also grew
to Rs.187 million at the end of FY17
compared to Rs.81 million at the end of
FY16.

Balance Sheet Gearing

We believe that a strong balance sheet imparts
unique ability to our company to be able to meet
demands of our clients and be able to raise debt
capital whenever required. ERFL has a total net
worth of Rs.3,135 million as at the end of FY17
compared to Rs.2,600 million at the end of FY16.
Amount of debt on the Balance Sheet as on March
31, 2017 was Rs.10,860 million (Rs.10,770 million as
on March 31, 2016), a Gearing Ratio of 3.46 times.
The comfortable leverage allows us enough
headroom to continue to grow and invest in
business. The gross Balance Sheet size at the end of
FY17 was Rs.15,517 million compared to Rs.14,539
million a year ago.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
HIGHLIGHTS

Brief highlights of our business performance in FY17
are as under:

Credit business of ERFL broadly offers SME Finance,
Loan against Property and Rural Finance. These
products provide us with the intended diversification
in our business thereby reducing the concentration
risk. Retail segment loans also provide the desired
potential for scaling up in a vast underpenetrated
market like India.

Total credit book of ERFL stands at Rs.14,737 million
at the end of this year compared to Rs.13,959 million
at the end of previous year, up 6%.
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The composition of Credit Book is as under:

(Rs. in million)

Product/Segment Book size as | Book size as
on March on March
31, 2017 31, 2016
Loan against Property 4,536 5,292
SME Loans 9,300 7,688
Rural Loans 137 653
Equipment Finance 624 312
Others 140 14
Total Loan Book 14,737 13,959

As at the end of FY17, loans amounting to Rs.14,737
million were outstanding compared to Rs.13,959
million as on March 31, 2016. Higher securitisation
of loans also resulted in an apparent lower growth in
the credit book.

As a result of strict adherence to conservative credit
appraisal, constant collateral monitoring and best-in-
class risk management, ERFL has managed to control
its asset quality satisfactorily. Our Gross NPLs were
at 0.42% and Net NPLs at 0.36% at the end of FY17
compared to Gross NPLs at 0.28% and Net NPLs at
0.07% at the end of FY16. Our Provision Cover Ratio
as on March 31, 2017 was 14%. We continue to
focus on risk management and achieving growth in
the book without diluting risk standards.

SME Finance

Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) are extremely
essential to the Indian Economy. They account for
almost 40% of India’s domestic production, around
50% of the total exports and 45% of the industrial
employment. They are also the second largest
employers of manpower, after agriculture. Thus they
need large amounts of capital to run their
operations, which they acquire through the financing
provided by NBFCs, Banks and the Government.
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Edelweiss launched SME finance during FY12 as this
sector is underfinanced and credit plays a crucial role
in the growth of this sector. The business currently
operates in 19 major cities which account for a large
part of the addressable SME market. The SME loans
book size at the end of FY17 in ERFL is Rs.9,300
million compared to Rs.7,688 million at the end of
FY16. During FY17, we also scaled up our new line of
business of Equipment Finance to the SMEs to
Rs. 624 million compared to Rs.312 million a year
ago. Given the sizeable contribution of SMEs to the
Indian Economy, this business presents a significant
opportunity to build a highly profitable and scalable
business.

Loans against Property

Loan against Property (LAP) is a convenient way of
borrowing by salaried or self — employed persons
and SMEs and NBFCs account for a major chunk of
the market share in this space. The loan is
collateralised by either residential or commercial
property and interest rates on such loans are lower
as compared to personal loans. Thus, borrowers can
get funds against the value of the collateral at a
relatively lower interest rate as compared to
personal loans.

Edelweiss started LAP business as a part of Retail
Finance business in FY12 and the LAP loans book size
in ERFL at the end of FY17 is Rs.4,536 million
compared to Rs.5,292 million at the end of FY16. The
end of vyear outstandings are lower due to
repayments.

Rural Finance

Edelweiss diversified it retail loans product portfolio
by foraying into Rural Finance in December 2013 as a
part of the strategy to serve all the sections of the
society. As at the end of FY17, we provided Rural
Finance in the nature of Micro Finance across
beneficiaries in 3 cities and around 3,070 villages in
and around Tamil Nadu and other states. Our Rural
Finance portfolio serves over 3,71,000 beneficiaries
at the end of FY17 compared to around 2,69,000 at
the end of the previous year. These loans are
provided in partnership with various channel



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited MD&A for Annual Report 2017

partners. The Rural Finance book in ERFL at the end
of FY17 was Rs.137 million compared to Rs.653
million at the end of FY16.

From its earliest days, ERFL has recognised this and
has always focused its energies in creating a strong
balance sheet. A strong capital base provides us the
freedom and ability to deploy capital for scaling up
our business. A strong balance sheet also enables us
easier access to market borrowings on the back of a
strong credit rating. It also helps in confidence
building exercise with our lenders.

Changing Liabilities Profile in Sync with Asset
Profile

ERFL has embarked on a strategy of reducing
dependence on group borrowings and is increasing
liabilities in the six months to five years bucket
thereby bringing down dependence on short term
borrowings. Towards this end, FY17 witnessed ERFL
contracting around Rs.1,750 million of medium to
long term debt by way of Bank term loan.

We maintain a matched ALM as we keep changing
the profile of our liabilities in sync with the assets
being booked.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

As per the Non Banking Financial Companies
Prudential Norms stipulated by Reserve Bank, all
NBFCs—ND-SI are required to maintain a minimum
Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (“CRAR”) of
15%. ERFL’s CRAR as on March 31, 2017 was 18.67%
with a Tier | Ratio of 17.90% compared to CRAR of
18.70% and a Tier | Ratio of 17.68% as on March 31,
2016.

OPPORTUNITIES

The roll out of GST shortly and the performance of
the BJP in recent polls will place the agenda of
economic reforms on a firm footing. The global
economy is also showing signs of recovery. These
developments augur well for growth of financial
services in India for firms like Edelweiss. We thus see
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immense opportunities coming our way in FY18 and
beyond as under:

¢ India is already the fastest growing economy
globally and various projections for growth by
World Bank or IMF etc. indicate that India will
continue to outperform other economies. This
would open up vast opportunities for us to grow
our various diversified businesses.

e We believe the policy liberalization and
regulatory changes for enhancing the ease of
doing business will help create all round
opportunities for growth, thus helping providers
of financial services grow their business.

THREATS

While the opportunities landscape is promising, the
following threats could dampen the growth of
financial services sector in India:
e Slower than expected recovery of macro-
economy, domestically as well as globally, or
delay in revival of capex cycle can impede the
growth.
° While the monsoon is predicted to be
normal this year, any unforeseen failure of the
monsoon or return of the dreaded El Nino can
hinder the recovery in rural economy.

OUTLOOK & STRATEGY

e The resilient Indian economy is back on a
path to recovery. Going ahead we
anticipate growth to improve based on
rebound in exports and global economy,
introduction of GST, stability in rural
economy and government’s continued push
towards infrastructure, rural development
and affordable housing.

e The commercial credit sector is expected to
grow once the conditions start improving,
early signs of which are already visible.
While the commercial banks are grappling
with asset quality issues, the NBFCs are
expected to continue to be an effective
channel for credit dispensation.

e In this backdrop, we believe our strategic
approach  whose  cornerstones  are
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profitability, scalability, constant focus on
risk and growth in adjacent markets,
building leadership and maintaining culture,
will continue to manifest in constant growth
for us.

At Edelweiss we believe that we must add significant
value by providing cutting edge products and
services by focusing on five key vectors in our
journey in future — people management, cost
management and risk management technology,
customer experience and innovation.

ENTERPRISE GROUPS

The business of ERFL is controlled and supported by
a core of Enterprise Groups that provide consistent
quality and rigour to key process functions. Various
steps taken by us to improve efficacy of Enterprise
functions are detailed below.

The business activities of ERFL are exposed to
various risks that are either inherent to the business
or have their genesis in changes to external
environment. In order to maintain financial
soundness of the company, Edelweiss Group has
established a proprietary eight risk framework. The
framework provides comprehensive risk control by
way of identification, monitoring and reporting of all
critical risks. Highest standards are always
maintained in Risk Management at Edelweiss. It is
the constant endeavour of Edelweiss to heighten risk
awareness and effectiveness of risk management.
We at ERFL share the same ethos in regard to Risk as
our parent Group.

We have the business risk team within ERFL which
ensures implementation of risk philosophy and
practices at business level. Our risk team also
ensures that necessary action is taken to make
certain that identified risks are adequately
addressed.

Key Risks
ERFL deals in multiple asset classes and client
segments and is thus exposed to various risks that
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can be broadly classified as credit risk, market risk
and operational risk.

Credit Risk

The credit risk framework of ERFL ensures prior and
periodic comprehensive assessment of every client,
counterparty and collateral. Exposure limits are
sanctioned to counterparties based on their credit
worthiness. Credit risk monitoring mechanism
ensures that exposure to clients is diversified and
remains within stipulated limits. Effective credit risk
management has enabled us to steer through
environmental stress conditions without any major
impact.

Market Risk

ERFL faces the usual market risks on the liabilities as
well as assets side. In order to monitor such market
risk, a comprehensive set of reports and limits has
been put in place that track positions, value at risk
and duration of assets. The risk framework ensures
that the risks are monitored and necessary timely
action is taken for every single instance of breach, in
case they occur.

Additionally, the asset liability mismatch and
collateral margins are regularly assessed. Liquidity
requirements are closely monitored and necessary
care is taken to maintain sufficient liquidity cushion
for maturing liabilities and for any unforeseen
requirements. We also ensure diversification in
source of borrowing to reduce dependence on a
single source. We also pro-actively modify our
liabilities profile in sync with the changing assets
profile to ensure that we do not carry any material
asset liability mismatch.

Operational Risk

Operational risk framework of ERFL is designed to
balance and check operational risk at key
manifestation points. In addition to defining new
processes, we constantly review all critical processes
to proactively identify weak controls and strengthen
the same.
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As per the Companies Act, 2013, the companies
need to ensure that they have laid down internal
financial controls and that such controls are
adequate and were operating effectively. Towards
this end, we at ERFL have always adopted a risk
balancing approach. ERFL has an Internal Control
System, well commensurate with its size, scale,
nature and complexity of operations. The Company
conducts its internal audit within the parameters of
regulatory framework including preparation and
execution of annual internal audit plan.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit follows Generally Accepted Audit
Practices, Internal Audit Standards, analytical
procedures etc. and ensures compliance with section
138 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 13 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Internal Control

Our Internal Control Procedures include monitoring
compliance with relevant matters covered under
section 134(1)(e) of the Companies Act 2013.
Internal Control Policies

Edelweiss Group has institutionalised a strong
compliance culture across all the Business Group
recognising that transparency and trust amongst all
its stakeholders can be achieved only through this.
We share the common resources of Compliance
Group of Edelweiss that ensures compliance with all
the applicable laws or policies.

The Edelweiss philosophy on people is deep rooted
in building and nurturing talent and leadership
within the organisation. We believe that our people
have always been the drivers of innovation,
efficiency and productivity leading to our
phenomenal track record of growth.
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For an NBFC like ours, financial capital and human
resources capital form the most critical resources for
growth. At ERFL we believe that our human capital is
our greatest strength and is the driver of growth,
efficiency and productivity.

Highlights of our HR initiatives in FY17 are as under:

e We ended FY17 with a total headcount of
224, up from 101 as of March 31, 2016, as
we scaled up our hiring to grow our
business.

e As growth comes back gradually, we have
added people at all levels. We also added
number of employees for our enterprise
groups to meet the challenges of increasing
scale and complexity of our business.

Amongst our much strength, we must count our
performance appraisal system, which has helped to
instil fairness and development orientation in the
organisation. The process of Performance Appraisal
is based on evaluations against pre-set and clearly
documented goals and has stood the test of time.

In today’s digital world, a customer has multiple
options. Growth will accrue to organisations which
succeed in giving a truly memorable customer
experience. At Edelweiss, we fully recognise the
significance of a great customer experience. To this
end, Customer Centricity movement is at our centre
stage. This focused attention has helped improve
customer  satisfaction scores and customer
experience across the board.

Edelweiss Customer Centricity model is based on
four pillars: Listen to Understand, Deliver as
Promised, Respond Effectively and Go Extra Mile, in
other words “Suno Samjho Suljhao”.
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ERFL enjoys the following Credit Ratings:

Rating Agency Facility Rating
Crisil Long Term Bank Facilities CRISIL AA/Stable
ICRA Long Term Bank Facilities [ICRA] AA
BWR Long Term Debt Programme BWR AA+
CARE Long Term Debt Programme CARE AA
Crisil Long Term Debt Programme CRISIL AA/Stable
ICRA Long Term Debt Programme [ICRA] AA
CARE Short Term Debt Programme CARE Al+
ICRA Short Term Debt Programme [ICRA] A1+

All ratings are current as on March 31, 2017.

Cautionary Statement

Statements made in this Management Discussion and Analysis may contain certain forward looking statements
based on various assumptions on the ERFL and Edelweiss Group's present and future business strategies and the
environment in which it operates. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied
due to risk and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of economic and political conditions in
India and abroad, volatility in interest rates and in the securities market, new regulations and Government policies
that may impact the company's businesses as well as the ability to implement its strategies. The information
contained herein is as of the date referenced and Edelweiss does not undertake any obligation to update these
statements. ERFL has obtained all market data and other information from sources believed to be reliable or its
internal estimates, although its accuracy or completeness cannot be guaranteed. The presentation relating to
business wise financial performance, balance sheet, asset books of ERFL and industry data herein is
reclassified/regrouped based on Management estimates and may not directly correspond to published data. The
numbers have also been rounded off in the interest of easier understanding.

* *
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ANNEXURE C

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s len
Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

(2)
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions:
(

a

¢) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions:

gth basis: NA

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

f) date(s) of approval by the Board:

(
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions:
(
(

g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under

tirst proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis-NIL

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Registered Office; Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra ©+91 22 4002 4400 & +01 22 4019 4925
www,edelweissretailfin.com

Anil

S. Name(s) of the| Nature of | Duratio |Salient terms of Date(s) of | Amount
No. |related party and | contracts/ | n of the | the contracts or approval by | paid  as
nature of | arrangeme | contract | arrangements the Board, if | advances,
relationship: nts/transa | s / | or transactions | any: if any:
ctions arrange | including  the
ments/t | value, if any:
ransacti
ons
@) (b) © @ @ b
1
- Mumbai,May16,2017 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

W

thuri

Director

DIN

: 00177945

Director
DIN: 02463804




ANNEXURE C-1

@Edelweiss

Ideas create, values protect

Policy on Related Party Transactions

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

CIN: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Regd. Office: Edelweiss House,
Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina,
Mumbai-400098,

Maharashtra




ANNEXURE C-1

@Edelwelss

|deas create, values protect

1. Preamble

Related party transactions can present a potential or actual conflict of interest which may be
against the best interest of the company and its shareholders. Considering the requirements for
approval of related party transactions as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)
read with the Rules framed there under and Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
(the “Company” or “ERFL”), has adopted the Policy on Related Party Transactions (“the
Policy”).

This Policy is intended to ensure due and timely identification, approval, disclosure and
reporting of transactions between the Company and any of its Related Parties in compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations as may be amended from time to time.

2. Objective
The provisions of this Policy are designed to govern the approval process and disclosure
requirements to ensure transparency in the conduct of Related Party Transactions in the best
interest of the Company and its shareholders and to comply with the statutory provisions in
this regard.

3. Definitions
The Related Party shall be as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder and the applicable Accounting Standards.

“Arm’s Length Transaction” means a transaction between two related parties that is conducted
as if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest.

“ Relative” means relative as defined under Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013 .A person
shall be deemed to be the relative of another if he or she is related to another in any one of the
following manner:

i.  Member of the Hindu Undivided Family

ii.  Spouse

iii.  Father
iv. Mother
v. Son

vi.  Son’s wife
vii.  Daughter
viii. =~ Daughter’s husband
ix. = Brother
x.  Sister.
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Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) mean key managerial personnel as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013 and includes-
i.  the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer or the manager and in their
absence, a Whole-time Director;
ii.  the Company Secretary;
iii. the Chief Financial Officer; and
iv.  Such other person as may be specified as KMP from time to time.

“Associate Company” in relation to another company, means a company in which that other
company has a significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary company of the company
having such influence and includes a joint venture company.

Explanation — For the purposes of this clause, “significant influence” means control of at least twenty
per cent of total share capital, or of business decisions under an agreement.

“Related Party Transactions” means any transaction involving transfer of resources, services or
obligations between the Company and a Related Party, regardless of whether a price is charged
and includes -

a. Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

b. Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying property of any kind;

c. Leasing of property of any kind;

d. Availing or rendering of any services;

e. Appointment of any agent for the purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or property;

f. Such related party's appointment to any office or place of profit in the Company or associate
Company;

g. Providing or obtaining guarantees and collaterals.

(The above is an indicative list and not an exhaustive one)

Explanation: A transaction with a Related Party shall be deemed to include single transaction or a
group of transactions in a contract.

“Material Related Party Transactions” means any transaction/transactions to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds 10% of
the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of
the Company.

4. Review and approval of the Related Party Transactions
1. The Audit Committee (the Committee) of the Board shall review and, if considered

appropriate, approve the Related Party Transactions. While considering the Related Party
Transactions, the following information shall be presented to the Committee:
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(i) the name of the Related Party and the basis on which such person or entity is a
Related Party;

(ii) the Related Party’s interest in the transactions, including the Related Party’s position
or relationship with, or ownership of, any entity that has an interest in the transactions;
(iii) the approximate monetary value of the transactions of the Related Party’s interest in
the transactions;

(iv) general description of the transactions, including material terms and conditions, if
any;

(v) in the case of a lease or other transactions, providing for periodic payments or
installments, the aggregate amount of all periodic payments or installments to be made;
(vi) in the case of loan, the aggregate amount of loan and the rate/amount of interest
payable on such loan;

(vii) in case of guarantees issued, the aggregate amount of guarantees and commission,
if any, to be payable on such guarantees;

(viii) an assessment of whether the transactions are on terms that are comparable with
the terms available to unrelated parties or to the employees generally; and

(ix) any other material information regarding the transactions or the Related Party’s
interest in the transactions.

The transactions shall be approved only if it is determined by the Committee that such

transactions are:

(i) in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders;

(ii) to be entered into by the Company (or its subsidiary or associate entity) on terms that
are comparable to those that would be obtained in arm’s length transactions with
unrelated parties; and

(iif) In the ordinary course of the business of the Company.

Ordinary course of business means the usual transactions, customs and practices undertaken by the
Company to conduct its business operations and activities and includes all such activities which the

company can undertake as per Memorandum & Articles of Association.

2. No member of the Committee shall participate in the review, consideration or approval of
any Related Party Transactions with respect to which such member or any of his/her

relative is a Related Party.

If any material information with respect to such transactions shall change subsequent to the
Committee’s review of such transactions, the Committee shall be presented with the

updated information for its approval.
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4. If any additional Related Party Transactions is proposed to be entered into subsequent to
the Committee’s approval, management shall present such transactions to the Committee
for approval before entering into such transactions.

Approval of the Board

If the Committee determines that a Related Party Transaction should be brought before the
Board, or if the Board in any case elects to review any such matter or it is mandatory under any
law for Board to approve the Related Party Transaction, then the Board shall consider and
approve the Related Party Transaction at a meeting and the considerations set forth above shall
apply to the Board’s review and approval of the matter, with such modification as may be
necessary or appropriate under the circumstances.

Omnibus Approval of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for Related Party Transactions proposed to
be entered into by the company subject to the following conditions:
i) The Committee shall lay down the criteria for granting the omnibus approval in line with the
Policy and such approval shall be applicable in respect of transactions which are repetitive in
nature;
(i) The Committee shall satisfy itself the need for such omnibus approval and that such
approval is in the interest of the Company;
(iif) Such omnibus approval shall specify:-
a) the name/s of the related party, nature of transaction, period of transaction,
maximum amount of transaction that can be entered into,
b) the indicative base price / current contracted price and the formula for variation in
the price if any, and
c) such other conditions as the Audit Committee may deem fit;
Provided that where the need for Related Party Transaction cannot be foreseen and aforesaid
details are not available, Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for such transactions
subject to their value not exceeding Rs. 1 crore per transaction.
d) The Committee shall review, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of the Related
Party Transactions entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus
approval given;and
e) Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one year and shall
require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year.

Related Party Transactions not approved under the Policy

In the event of entering into a Related Party Transaction with a Related Party that has not been
approved under this Policy prior to its consummation, the matter shall be reviewed by the
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Committee. The Committee shall consider all the relevant facts and circumstances regarding the
Related Party Transaction, and shall evaluate all options available to the Company, including
ratification, revision or termination of the Related Party Transaction.

The Committee shall also examine the facts and circumstances pertaining to the failure of
reporting such Related Party Transaction to the Committee under the Policy, and shall take any
such action it may deem fit.

In any case, where the Committee determines not to ratify a Related Party Transaction that has
been commenced without approval, the Committee, as appropriate, may direct additional
actions including, but not limited to, immediate discontinuation or rescission of the transaction
or seeking the approval of the shareholders, payment of compensation for the loss suffered by
the related party etc. In connection with any review of a Related Party Transaction, the
Committee has authority to modify or waive any procedural requirements as specified in the
Policy.

Related Party Transactions not previously approved

Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a Director or any other employee of the
Company with a Related Party, without obtaining the necessary approvals and if such
transaction is not ratified by the Committee, Board or, as the case may be, by the Shareholders
at a meeting within three months from the date on which such contract or arrangement was
entered into, such contract/arrangement shall be voidable at the option of the Board and if the
contract or arrangement is with a Related Party to any Director, or is authorised by any other
Director, the Directors concerned shall indemnify the Company against any loss incurred by it.
The Company may proceed against a Director or any other employee who had entered into
such contract or arrangement in contravention of the Policy for recovery of any loss sustained
by the Company as a result of such contract or arrangement and shall take any such action, it
may deem fit.

Registers and the Disclosures

The Company shall keep and maintain a Register, physically or electronically, as may be
decided by the Board of Directors, giving separately the particulars of all contracts or
arrangements to which the Policy applies.

Every Director and the KMP shall, from time to time make the necessary disclosures to the
Board, a period of 30 days of his appointment, or relinquishment of his office in other
Companies/Firms/bodies corporate, as the case may be, disclose to the Company the
particulars relating to his/her concern or interest in the other associations which are required to
be included in the Register maintained in this regard.
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The Register shall be preserved permanently and shall be kept in the custody of the Company
Secretary/ Chief Financial Officer of the Company or any other person authorised by the Board
for the purpose.

The Company shall disclose, in the Board’s report, transactions prescribed in Section 188(1) of
the Act with related parties, which are not in ordinary course of business or arm’s length basis.

This Policy will also be uploaded on the website of the Company and shall be disclosed in the
Annual Report.

Review
This Policy shall be reviewed by the Audit Committee as and when any changes are to be made

in the Policy. Any changes or modification in the Policy as recommended by the Committee
shall be presented to the Board for their approval.
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Remuneration Policy

Objective

The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) requires a Company to frame policy for determining the
remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other employees.
While appointing the Directors, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considers
qualification, positive attributes, areas of expertise and number of Directorships in other
companies and such other factors as it may deem fit. The Board considers the Committee’s
recommendation, and takes appropriate action.

The objective of the Remuneration Policy (the Policy) of the Company is to provide a
framework for the remuneration of the Independent Directors, Non-executive Directors,
Managing Director/Executive Directors, KMPs, and other Senior level employees of the
Company.

The objective of this Policy is to ensure that:

* the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
talent required to run the company successfully;

* relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

* remuneration to the Directors, KMPs and senior management comprises a balance of
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

Remuneration of the Independent Directors & Non- executive Directors

* The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are eligible for sitting fees for
attending the meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof.

* The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are also eligible for commission,
subject to limits prescribed under the Act and the Rules framed there under.

* The Independent Directors are not eligible for stock options.

* The Non-executive Directors (other than promoter Directors) shall be eligible for stock
options.



Remuneration of the Managing Director & Executive Directors

* The remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive Directors is recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) to the Board. Based on the
recommendations of the NRC, the Board determines and approves the remuneration of
the Managing Director/Executive Directors, subject to necessary approvals, if any.

* The remuneration paid to the Managing Director/Executive Directors is within the
limits prescribed under the Act and approved by the shareholders of the Company. The
remuneration structure includes fixed salary, perquisites, bonus, other benefits and
allowances and contribution to Funds, etc.

* The Executive Directors (other than the promoter Directors) shall be eligible for stock
options.

Remuneration of the KMP (other than Executive Directors) and Senior level employees
* The key components of remuneration package of the KMP (other than Executive
Directors) and Senior level employees shall comprise of fixed salary, perquisites, annual
bonus, other benefits and allowances and contribution to Funds, etc.
* They shall be eligible for stock options.
Policy Review

* The Policy may be amended as may be necessary.

* The NRC shall implement the Policy, and may issue such guidelines, procedures etc. as
it may deem fit.
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Annexure E

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial vear 2016-17

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to
be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

To leverage the capacity and capital to equip and enable the social sector achieve the greatest impact
on the lives of the poor in India.

The CSR Policy of the Company is uploaded on the website www.edelweissretailfin.com

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee is as under:-

Mr. Anil Kothuri - Non Executive Director
Ms. Krishnaswamy Siddharth - Non Executive Director
Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah - Independent Director

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 189.81 million.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs. 3.80 million,

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs. 3.80 million

{(b) Amount unspent, if any; Rs. 3.30 million

Edeiweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate dentity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Mzharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 & +91 22 4019 4925
www.edelweissretailfin.com :
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COMPANY SECRETARIES
B-58 17 Floor, Delencs Cokoryy, BMew Delin - 110 §24
T, © {004 pAETS OO0, Fas 0001 4675 M2
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REFORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31% MARCH. 2017

|Purguant to gacton 20401} of the Companias Act 2013 and Ruds No. D of the
Companses (Appointmant and Remueneration of Managena! Personnel) Rules, 20014)

Ta,

The Mambers

Edelwaias Retall Finance Limited
(CIM: UET1 20MH 128 TPLCZE5450)
Edatesaiss Houas, O, C.5. T Road,
Kalina, Mumbgi City, A0H548,

W have conducied the sscretaral audil af the compliance of appicable siafulony
prowvisions and tha adherance to good corporate praclices by Edelwedss Rotail
Finanog Limited (herenafter calizd “the Companyahiose debt sacuriling ang listed
on BSE Lmited. Secratarial Audil was conducted in & rmraanes thal prosvded us a
reasonatle basis for evaluating the corporale concucksistatuiary complances anad
CEDIESEED Our ofnrsenthensan

‘Wa report that-

8] Mesntanance of secretanal recards is the responsibilty of the management of the
Camamny. Our responsibdiby s 0 espress an opinlon o Biags sesretanal reeonds
hased on cur aud|t

] We have feldwed the audit practices and processes as wera appropriate o
oikain rgasonable assurance abowd ke carmeciness of the conterns of the
sacrEtaral reconds, The verfication was done on 1est basis o ansura thet corresi
facts are mflected In secriaskal records, We belieye that the processes and
practces, we follpwed, provide & reasonable basis fod aur apinian,

Gh We have nod werifed the cormectaness and agproprisbenass af the feancial
atatemants of the Company,

d) Whersver required. we have abianed the Management representstion about tha
compliances of bws, roles gnd reguiations and hagpening of evenls &ic.




SANIAY GROVER & ASSIMCIATES

@) The compliance of the provisions of the comporate and other apphicable laws,
rules. regulalions, standards s the responsibiity of the managemesnt. Cur
axamination was limited to the verfication of procedures on 1est basis

i The Sscretanal Audit regonl s naither an assurance as o the flire viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the managemient has
canducted the affairs aof the Compeny.

Based an aur werification of the Compary's books, papers. minule baoks, forms and
retums filed and other recards mainained by the Company and aleo the infarmation
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and aulhorized representstives during
e conduct of Secretanal Audil, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during $we audit pesiod covering e financial year endad on 31™ March, 2017
(Audit Period™) complied with the statutory provislons Ested heseunder and also that
the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place 1o
the sxtant, in the manner and subjact 1o the reparting made hereinaftar:

Wia have examined the booke, papers, minute books, forme and refums fed and
atier recorde maintained by the Comgany for the financial year ended on 31" March,
2017 according o lihe provmaons of

{iy  The Companies Act, 2013 (he Ac) and the rules made thare under:

(F]  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA' and 1he rules made
fheareu ncfer;

iy The Depositories Act, 1986 and the Regulations and Bye-laws “amed
themaumnder;

{iv] “Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regqulations mads
themaunder 4o the extent of Forsign Direct investmend, Overseas Direcl
Irnvestment and External Commearcial Bonowings;

vy The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Secunfies and
Exchange Beard of India Act, 1952 ('SEB| Act'l-

18} The Secuibes and Exchange Board of India (lssus and Listing of Debt
Securiies) Regulations, 2008:;

(b} “The Secunbies and Exchange Soard of India (Registrars 1o an lsswe and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1983 reqarding the Comgpanies Act
and dealing with client;

(i *The Securitkes and Exchange Board of India (Prokbiion of Insider
Trading) Requlalions, 2015;

{dy The Secunfies and Exchange Hoard of India {Lisling Obfigations snd
Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations, 2015,

e M et D0 place under this reguiation during te sudit period
E"Dﬂy difs pecunities of the Comgany are isied on BSE Limisd: a3 such, provisioss of SER
btiss of Ifnsder Trading) Reguisticns, 2013 ane cot applicatiie par pe
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Wea have alzo examined compliance with 1he applicable dauses of the Secretarial
Standards on Meslings of the Board of Direciors (5511 and Sacretaris Standsos
an General Meatngs (55-2) issued by the naiiiute of Comgany Secretancs of Indm
which the Company has generally compliad weah.

Duwning the audit perod, the Cormpany has complad with the prosisions of the Aci
Rules, Reguatans and Guidsines 1o T extant applicable, as mentionod abowve.

(v The Cornpany, being & Mon- Banking Financing Company registensd amder
Saction 4508 af 1he Reserse Bank of Indea Act, 1934 6 camrying the business
a5 financing company (without acoeptance of pubbc depasts). As informed by
the: management, following are the laws which ane spacifically appkcable an thg
Cornpaanty -

# Tha Reseose Bank ol India Scl, 1934 and
# Wargus cirsulars, guidesnes and reguiations made under the Reserva Bank of
India Al 1834,

We have checked the Compliance Manmagemant System of the Company o ablain
MEEEs DN ke aEsSUrence showl e adeqracy of systems n place 10 ensure sompliamoe
of speclically applicablda laws and il werdficalion was dane on fost basss, Ve
beleve that the sud® evidence which we have oblained s sufficient and appropriase
W provide a bass for our audil opinion, In o opinion and to the best of owr
inlormation and  aocorfing 10 explasalions given bo us, we beliews that the
Compliance hManagement System of the Company seeme adeguate o ensuee
caompliance of bws spacifically apolicable bo @

Wie further freport that the Board of Direclars of the Company = doly consiituted
wilh proger befance of Nan-Exsculive Directors and Independent Directors. The
thangas in the Board of Dieciors that took place during the audit period ware
camied oul @0 compliancs wah the grovisions of fhe Sl

Adwance nolice Is given o all dinectors to scheduls the Board Maatings. Agernda and
detailed noles on agenda wers send in advance of the rmeelings, and a system exigts
for sesking and oblaining further information and dasifications on the agenda tems
bxfore tha mesting and for meaningiul padicpation at tha meeting,

Bowrd decsnns are camsad Ul with wnanimous oonsent and therefore, no dissenting
whmwes waare recqeined b B capluned and recorded as padt of the minutes

Wi further report thal there ase systems and processes m the  company
cammensarale with the size and opsrations af he company @ monikae and
enswie camphlance with applcable aws, refes. regulations and guideBnes,

Wile furthar report thatl during the awdit poriod;

i Pusuant to Sectiaon 13 of the A, the Company has shiffed Hs registened office
fronm thie “Kaolkata, WWesl Bengal™ fo “Rumbai, Maeharagshire” vide order dabed
Seplember OF, 2076,
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i Thne shemeholders of iha Company n thes Exira- Crdinary Senersd bisating hald
on 29™ fugust, 2016, passed the reaclubionds)

pursuant o Seclion 42 o ke Aasl o Eees, offer and alkofl up o
30,00,00H Thidy Lakh)] equily shkares of the fece vales of Rs. 10~ (Rupees
Tan Oyl each for cash at preamium of Bs. T8 (Rupees Seweniy Eight Only)
par sham aggregating e By, 26 4000 0000 (Rupses Twenky Sic Crare Foaty
Lakh Oy} on Grivabs placasmenl basis b Edohvesss Firnees! Preate Limited;

. pursuant to sachon 15X 1Ha) eand secion 180110c) of 1w Al for bomowing

manies fmm time b Sme and morgeging o cdharging b companys
undeslakeng and propedty oF Sy pat teereot 10 sacure Such boarcasing wp to &
contnuows  limit for the time being remaming  ondischasged  of  Bs,
2500 0000 0005 Crorg [Rugess Two Thausand Five Hundeed Crorss Oindy)
[apart mam bempodary loans oblained from the Comgany's banker in tha
ordinany course of busness] Faen thousgh the moneys o be bomawsed ogether
wiilh the moneys already boorossd by the Company may excesd  The
Bggragaie of the padd up shame capds! of the Com@any and s Tres meserve,
that is to sy, mesarves nol set apaanm foe any specific punpase,. and

pursEant o saction 47 of the Actk, to issee, offer and allot Mon- Comverlible
Debenberas with or wihout sscwity, aggregating te Hs 1000, 0000, 000/
Cmorgs (Rupess Ong Thousand Crorg Ondyl an privaste plscament basss, in
ares or Fhcee anchies.

Further, the Operatons Gommsties of the Booed of Deaclors of the Company
m their BMeeting beald on Ocicher 10, 2078, approsed {he grivabs placssimend of
120 (One Hundred and Twenly) Mon- Cormverible Debanturas of face walee of
A=, 10,00,0050- (Rupaes Ten Lakh Only) aggregabng 10 Hs. 12,00 00,3000
(Rupses Twalve Crodag) The wading of Non- Conwertible  Debarbores
commanced an Ocichers 10, 2014 at BSE Limited

For Sargay Growar & Associass
Company Secrodanas
Firm Registration Mo, F2001DEQ32800

Pairtrer
CF Moo 1681858
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ANNEXURE G

Disclosure pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and
other details in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel}
Rules, 2014, is as under:

N Disclosure Disclosure Details

0. Requirement

1 Ratio of the N.A.
remuneration of each
director to the median
remuneration of the
employees  of  the
Company  for the
financial year

2
Percentage increase in DiI‘ECtOI‘S/KMP’S Title A
remuneration of each increase
director, Chief in
Financial Officer, Chief remuncra
Executive Officer, | Mr. Arun Kumar | Chief Executive
Company Secretary or | Nayyar Officer 1070
Manager, if any, in the
financial year Mr. Vineet Mahajan Chief Financial 905

Officer
Ms.Sudipta Company 21
Majumdar Secretary

3 Percentage increase in | 99%. (The employees who joined the Company in FY
the median | 2016-17 are not considered for this purpose.)
remuneration of
employees in  the’
financial year

4 Number of permanent | There were 214 permanent employees on the rolls of the
employees on the rolls | Company as on March 31, 2017.
of Company at the end
of the year

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate identity Number: U671200MH1997PLC285430

Registered Office: Edalweiss Hause, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4008 4400 {E 491 22 4015 4925
www.edelweissretailfin.com :
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5 Average percentile | Average increase for employees other than
increase already made in | managerial personnel who were in employment
the salaries of employees | during FY 15-16 and FY 16-17 the average increase is
other than the managerial | 98.21%,

personnel in the last
financial year and its Average increase for managerial personnel is
comparison  with  the | 838725%

percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration
and justification thereof
and point out if there are

any exceptional
circumstances for increase
in the managerial
remuneration
6. Affirmations  that the | Itis affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the

remuneration is as per the | Remuneration Policy of the Company.
remuneration policy of the

Company
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Anil Kothxiri Krishnaswamy S$iddharth
Directo Director
Mumbai,May16,2017 DIN: 00177945 DIN: 02463804

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate ldentity Number: U67120MH1957PLC285490

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off, C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra ©+91 22 4009 4400 & +51 22 4015 4925
www.edelweissretailfin.com :
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BSR &Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

5th Floor, Lodha Excelus, Telephone +91 (22} 4345 5300
Apollo Mills Compound Fax +91 (22) 4345 5399
N. M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi

Mumbai - 400 011

India

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143 (10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances.

B S R & Associates (a partnership firm with Registered Office
Registration No. BA69226) converted into 5th Floor, Lodha Excelus,

B S R & Associates LLP (a Limited Liability, Apollo Mitls Compound
Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8182) N. M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi

with effect from October 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2017, and its profits and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the “Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c)  the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d)  in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act;

f)  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”; and

- g  with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 2.27 to the financial statements;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements (Continued)

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses- Refer Note 2.30 to the financial
statements.; and

lii. there were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv. the Company has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statements as to holdings
as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8th November, 2016
to 30th December, 2016. However, we are unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence to report on whether the disclosures are in accordance with books of account
maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the Management — Refer Note 2.57
to the financial statements.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 116231 W/W-100024

i

Ashwin Suvarna
Mumbai Parmmer

16 May 2017 Membership No: 109503
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the
financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Edelweiss Retail
Finance Limited (“the Company”) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, we

report that:
i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed
assets by which all the fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period
of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

ii.

- il

iv.

vi.

vii.

examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is a Service Company primarily engaged in the business of giving loans.
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans and investments made.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public to which directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and
the rules framed thereunder apply.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for any services rendered by the Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in
the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, service tax and other material
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the
Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did
not have any dues on account of customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and
cess. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, service tax, and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at
31 March 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the
financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (Continued)

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
provident fund, income tax, employees’ state insurance, service tax, and other
material statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

viii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions, banks, government or debenture holders during the year.

ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans taken by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were
raised. The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer during the year.

X. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

XI. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

Xil. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.
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XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions

with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable.

xvi.  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has registered as
required, under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 116231, W/W-100024

Ashwin Suvarna
Mumbai Partner

16 May 2017 Membership No: 109503
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edelweiss Retail
Finance Limited (the “Company”) as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 11623 1;W/W-100024

Ashwin Suvarna
Mumbai Partner

16 May 2017 Membership No: 109503




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Balance Sheet
as ai 31 March 2017

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions) As at Asat
Note 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds

(a) Share capital 2.1 329.50 299.50
(b) Reserves and surplus 22 2,805.43 2,311.13
3,134.93 2,610.63

Non-current liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 2.3 6,646.75 7,726.86
(b) Other long-term liabilities 2.4 192.70 93.98
(c) Long-term provisions 2.5 95.66 49.39

6,935.11 7,870.23

Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 2.6 1,751.00 556.35
(b) Trade payables 2.7
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises

. 390.80 172.53
and small enterprises
(c) Other current liabilities 2.8 3,248.27 3,257.38
(d) Short-term provisions 29 56.74 72.04
5,446.81 4,058.30
TOTAL 15,516.85 14,539.16
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 2.10
(i) Property, plant & equipment 9.29 1.71
(ii) Intangible assets 3.31 0.10
(iii) Intangibles under development 1.00 1.10
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 2.11 21.92 10.74
(c) Long-term loans and advances 2.12 7,706.41 8,008.42
{d) Other non-current assets 2.13 42.00 1.87
7,783.93 8,023.94
Current assets .
(a) Cash and bank balances 2.14 72.21 140.29
(b) Short-term loans and advances 2.15 7,296.37 6,196.17
(c) Other current assets 2.16 364.34 178.76
7,732.92 6,515.22
TOTAL 15,516.85 14,539.16

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements 1&2

As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Ashwin Suvarna ApgiKothuri Krish y
Siddharth

Partner Director Director

Membership No: 109503 DIN: 00177945 DIN : 02463804

wn D Msfusdon

Vinecet Mahaja Sudipta Majumdar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai

16 May 2017 16 May 2017 16 May 2017




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
Jor the year ended 31 March 2017

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)
Revenue from operations

Fee and commission income

Interest income

Other income

Total Revenue

Expenses

Employee benefit expenses
Finance costs

Depreciation

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax (includes short provision for earlier years Rs. 0.03 million
(Previous year Rs. 8.23 million)

(2) Deferred tax (Net)

Profit for the yearv

Earnings per equity share (Face value Rs. 10 each):

Basic and diluted (in rupees)

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For BS R & Associates LLP

hwin Suvarna

Partner
Membership No: 109503

Mumbai
16 May 2017

Note

17
13

SN

[l
o

2.20
221
2.10
222

2.25

For the year ended
31 March 2016

For the year ended
31 March 2017

187.20 80.97
2,338.16 1,532.57
9,98 1.18
2,535.34 1,614.72
215.71 49.32
1,161.19 793.16
3.32 0.55
665.82 392.40
2,046.04 1,235.43
489.30 379.29
181.01 145.53
(1L.17) (13.26)
319.46 247.02
10.08 1228

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retafil Finance Limited

AnilKothuri Krishiiaswamy
Siddharth
Director Director

DIN: 00177945 DIN : 02463804

»
Vineet Mahaja Sudipta Majumdar

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai
16 May 2017 16 May 2017




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Cash Flow Statement

Notes:

Jor the year ended 31 March 2017
(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 489.30 379.2%
Adjustments for
Depreciation* 3.32 0.55
Provision for standard assets 9.64 28.00
Provision for Restructured advances 291 1.25
Provision for non performing assets (23.79) 26.69
Provision for credit loss on securitisation 30.14 5.60
Bad-debts and advance written off 225,54 1.78
Interest on income tax refund - (0.05)
Loss on sale of Fixed assets(net) 0.02 -
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 737.08 443.11
Add / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes
Increase in receivable from financing business (Refer note 1) (5,114.77) (8,444.92)
Increase in other loans and advances (21.11) (242.66)
Increase in other current assets (225.71) (32.76)
Increase in liabilities and provisions 300.65 687.64
Net cash used in operating activities (4,323.86) (7,589.59)
Income taxes paid (164.80) (134.82)
Net cash used in operating activities -A (4,488.66) (7,724.40) -
B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (14.50) (4.86)
Sale of fixed assets 0.47 - B
Increase in fixed deposits (64.33) -
Net cash used in investing activities - B (78.36) (4.86)
C  Cash flow from financing activities
K
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 264.00 1,128.14 !
Premium payable on redemption of non convertible debentures (90.47) !
Proceeds from loans securitization / assignment 4,112.16 -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (Refer note 1) (1,080.10) 4,186.86 ;
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (Net of repayment) 1,229.02 2,539.95 F
Net cash generated from financing activities - C 4,434.61 7,854.95 !
!
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (13241 125.69 E
!
P
i
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 140,29 14,60 :
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 2.14) 7.88 140.29 f

I Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

As per our report of even date attached.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Charged
Firmf/Regi]

tration No. 116231W,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finange Limited

W

i
i
:
:

%

4'( )"
Abhwin Suvarna A@K&thuri Krishnasw. '
Siddharth
Partner Director Direcror

DIN: 00177945

Membership No: 109503 DIN : 02463804

0
< Mojuwalar
Sudipta MajunMar
Chief FinancialOfficer  Company Secreiary

Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
16 May 2017 16 May 2017 16 May 2017



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements

1. Significant accounting policies 3

L1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The accompanying financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with
Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost
convention, on the accrual basis of accounting , unless otherwise stated, and comply with
the accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (to the extent nofified), provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent
applicable) (hereinafter togsther referred to as ‘the Act’) and the Schedule III to the Act
and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’). The financial ?-
statements are presented in Indian rupees in millions

The Company being a NBFC registered with RBI follows the guidelines issued by the RBI,

in respect of  income recognition, provisioning for non-performing assets and valuation of L
investments,

1.2 Use of estimates i

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the i
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, i
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial sta.cments and
the reported amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The estimates
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

i
13 Current-non-current classification ;
1

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current
Assets

An Asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
Company’s normal operating cycle;

b. Itis held primary for the purpose of being traded;
¢. ltis expected to be realized within tweive months after the reporting date; or

d. Itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to ]
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. ’

Current Assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets,
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfics any of the following criteria:

b. Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

14

1.5

1.6

d. The Company does not have an unconditional right to. defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of the liability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, results in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other
liabilities are classified as non-current

Revenue recognition

a. Fees Income including processing fees (other than small & medium enterprises
loans) are accounted for on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms and
confracts entered into between the Company and the counterparty.

b.  Incase of small & medium enterprises loans, processing fees collected are amortised
over a pre-determined tenor arrived on an industry average or original contractual
tenor, whichever is shorter. The unamortised balance is disclosed under “Other
current liabilities” and “Other long term liabilities” based on amortisable tenor. In
the event of a loan being foreclosed, securitised or written off, the unamortised
portion of such processing fees is recognised as income at the time of such
foreclosure, securitisation or write off,

c. Interest income is recognised on accrual basis. Interest income in case of lending
business is recognised on accrual basis except in case of non- performing assets,
wherein it is accounted on realisation, as per RBI guidelines. Loans are repaid by
way of Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIs), which comprise of principal and
interest. Interest is calculated on outstanding balance at the beginning of a month.
EMIs generally commence only after the entire loan is disbursed. Pending
commencement of EMIs, pre-EMI interest is charged every month and is accounted
on accrual basis.

d. Profit/loss earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit/loss
on sale of investments is determined based on the weighted average cost of the
investments sold.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Penal interest income on-delayed EMI-or Pre-EMT is recognized on receipt basis.

8. Charges levied like cheque bouncing charges, loam conversion ‘charges etc are

recognized on receipt basis.

Provisioning on receivables from financing business

Provision for non-performing assets is based on the management’s assessment of the

degree of impairment of the loan asset and the level of provisioning required as per the
prudential norms prescribed by RBI.

Provisions against standard assets are made on the basis of prudential norms prescribed by -

RBI.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Property, plant & equipment

5th Floor,
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Property, plant & equipment arestated—atcost—of geguisttorr—or—construction fess
accurnuiated depreciation and impairment if any. The cost of Property, plant & equipment
comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for
sintended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
evaluated the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of
Part C of the Schedule for calculating the depreciation. The useful lives of the fixed assets
are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated

useful life
Office Equipment 5 years
Vehicles 8 years
Computer and data processing units-End user devices, such as Desktops, 3 years
laptops, etc.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such
assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years or estimated useful life,
whichever is shorter life.

L7 Employee benefits

The accounting policy followed by the Company in respect of its employee benefit
schemes in accordance with Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005), is set out below:

Provident fund

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution
scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation
in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any
plan assets, if any, is deducted

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each period
of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures
each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The
discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields on
Government Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
arise.

Compensated AbDsences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of
their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company
recognises the charge fo the Statement of profit and loss and corresponding Ziabilily on
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

1.8

L9

110

1.11

L12

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is higher
of the assets net selling price and the value in use which means the present value of future
cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and it’s eventual disposal.
If such recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognized in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an
indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a
maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Investments

Investments are classified into non-current investments and current investments.
Investments which are intended to be held for one year or more are classified as long term
investments and investments which are intended to be held for less than one year are
classified as current investments.

Long term investments are carried at cost less diminution in value which is other than
temporary, determined separately for each investment.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost
and fair value is done separately in respect of each category of investment. In case of
investments in mutual funds, the net asset value of units declared by the mutual funds is
considered as the fair value.

Loan origination costs

Loan origination costs comprise of costs paid to third party vendors and intermediaries for
loan acquisition, processing, field verification, legal evaluation, title search, fraud check,
technical valuation, etc. Such origination costs, directly attributable to disbursed loans are
amortised over a pre-determined tenor arrived on an industry average or original
contractual tenor, whichever is shorter. The unamortised balance is disclosed as part of
“Long-term loans and advances” and “Short-term loan and advances” based on amortisable
tenor. Where the loan is foreclosed, securitised or written off, the unamortised portion of
such loan origination costs are recognised as a charge to the statement of profit and loss at
the time of such foreclosure, securitisation or write off,

Securitised Assets

Assets that are securitised and assigned are derecognised in the books of accounts based on
the principle of transfer of ownership interest over the assets. De-recognition of such assets
and recognition of gain or loss arising on such securitisation is based on the generally
accepted accounting principles and industry practice.

Taxation

Sth Floor,
Lodha Excelus,

Taxexpense comprises current 1ax (i.e. amount of tax for the year determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax charge or benefit (reflecting the
tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Current tax

Provision for income tax is recognised based on estimated tax liability computed after
adjusting for allowances, disallowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred tax

The deferred tax charge or benefit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities and assets
are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable
certainty that the asset can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed
depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised
only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of the assets. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the
amount that is reasonable/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit asset is recognised where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be
realised in future. MAT credit assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and written
down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.

1.13  Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting
Standard 20 — “Earnings Per Share” notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. Basic
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or
other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted

earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attibutable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earning per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

1.14  Provisions and contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past €vent
that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

AL ingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent

.\ \\ are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will

Lodha Excelus, arise;

- [Apollo Mills Compound \ -
Ma mi

Mumbai - 400 011




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2017

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

2.1 Share capital

Authorised:
50,000,000 (Previous year: 50,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up::

32,950,000 (Previous year: 29,950,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up

Movement in share capital

Equity Shares of Rs 10 cach fully paid
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

Shares held by holding / ultimate holding Company and / or their subsidiaries /
associates

Edelcap Securities Limited, the holding Company

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited :
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (formerly known as Arum Investments Private
Limited)

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Edelcap Securities Limited
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (formerly known as Arum Investments Private
Limited)

Rights, preferences and restriction attached to equity shares:

As at As al
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

500.00 500.00
500.00 500.00
329.50 299.50
329.50 299.50
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
29,950,000 299.50 15,658,833 156.59
3,000,000 30.00 14,291,167 14291
32,950,000 329.50 29,950,000 299.50
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Percentage Percentage
Number of shares shareholding Number of shares shareholding
25,258,333 76.66% 25,258,333 84.34%
4,691,667 14.24% 4,691,667 15.66%
3,000,000 9.10% - 0.00%
32,950,000 100.00% 29,950,000 100.00%
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Percentage Percentage
f sh: ;
Number of shares shareholding Number of shares shareholding
25,258,333 76.66% 25,258,333 84.34%
4,691,667 14.24% 4,691,667 15.66%
3,000,000 9.10% - 0%
32,950,000 100.00% 29,950,000 100.00%

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs 10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one

e R

Vote per share held.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2017

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

2.2 Reserves and surplus
Capital Reserve

Securities Premium Account
Opening balance
Add : Additions during the year
Less : Provision for redemption premium on NCD

Special Reserve under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, of India *
Opening balance
Add : Additions during the year

Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Opening Balance
Add: Net profit for the year
Amount available for appropriation
Appropriations:
Transfer to Special Reserve under Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934

* Represents reserve created @ 20% of the profit after tax for the year as per the provisions of section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

5th Floor,
Lodha Excelus,

N. M. Jesb

MahalaxXmi,
Mumbai - 400 011

As at
31 March 2017

Asat
31 March 2016

8.18 8.18
1,978.08 992.85
234.00 985.23
59.16 -
2,152.92 1,978.08
65.07 15.66
63.89 49.41
128.96 65.07
259.80 62.19
319.46 247.02
579.26 309.21
63.89 4941
515.37 259.80
2,805.43 2,311.13




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2017

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

23 Long-term borrowings
Secured
Non-convertible redeemable debentures (Refer note 2.32)

[Secured by pari pasu charge on immovable property and loans and advance]

Term loans from bank (Refer note 2.34)
[Secured by pari pasu charge on receivables of the Company.]

Unsecured
Loans from related parties (refer note 2,24(ii))

[These loans are at an interest rate of 12 per cent per annum, repayable after the
end of one year but before the end of three years, as mutually agreed]

Non-convertible redeemable subordinated debt (Refer note 2.3 1

24 Other long-term liabilities

Unamortised processing fees
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Unrealised gain on loan transfer transactions

25 Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2.26B)
Compensated leave absences
Deferred bonus

Other Provisions:
Provision for non performing assets
Provision for standard assets
Provision for restructured loan
Provision for credit loss on securitisation

5th Floor,
Lodha Excelus,

Apollo Mjlls
@ N. M. arg,
: Makdfatmi,

Mumbai - 400 011

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
2,058.17 3,000.00
4,328,58 4,296.86
6,386.75 7,296.86
- 290.00
260.00 140.00
6,646.75 7,726.86
52.84 65.33
97.87 26.78
41,99 1.87
192.70 93.98
3.13 2.11
0.75 0.63
9.50 -
2.82 5.96
39.06 3334
4.66 1.75
35.74 5.60
95.66 49.39

B




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2017

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

5th Floof,
Lodha Excelus. )
Apollo Mills Compoung,
@ N.M.@s 9.
Mawelgxmi,
Mumbai - 400 011

2.6  Short-term borrowings ,
Secured }
Bank overdraft 1,018.53 460.24
[Secured by pari pasu charge on receivables of the Company] 1
(Due within one year, unless otherwise stated) i

}
Unsecured '
Loans from a related party (repayable on demand) (refer note 2.24(ii)) 732.47 96.11 i
1,751.00 556.35 [
L

2,7  Trade payables ;
Trade payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - =
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and :

small enterprises
i) Acceptances - -
ii ) Others
a. Related Parties (Refer Note No. 2.24 (ii)) . 51.81 97.05
b. Others (includes sundry creditors and provision for expenses) 338.99 75.48
390.80 172.53 5
2.8  Other current liabilities
Current maturities of Long Term Secured Debt
Term loan from bank (Refer note 2.34) 1,520.83 486.46
Non-convertible debentures (Refer note 2.32) 1,000.00 2,000.00
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 148.47 278.55
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - 7.16
Income received in advance 0.46 1.08
Unamortised processing fees 67.91 60.64
Other Payables
Accrued salaries and benefits 42.75 15.78
Withholding taxes, service tax and other taxes payable 25.47 17.25
Book overdraft 280.11 367.40
Provision for capital expenditure 0.50 0.11
Others - 2.94 024
Unrealised gain on loan transfer transactions 158.83 22.71
3,248.27 3,257.38

2.9  Short-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits )
Gratuity (refer note 2.26B) 0.50 -
Compensated absences 0.24 0.17 ’
Deferred bonus 15.95 - :

Other Provisions : :
Proviston-fornomperformingassets 1.43 22.13
Provision for standard assets : 12.36 8.44
Provision for 1axati 311 illion; i

l'OV-ISIOH or m\q'uqn (Net of advance tax Rs.311.93 million; Previous 26.21 4130
year:Rs. 145,93 million )
56.74 72.04
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued) -

as at 31 March 2017
(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
2.11 Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets on account of :
Provision for standard assets 17.80 14.45
Amortised processing fees 41.79 43.60
Provision for Gratuity 1.26 0.73
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.34 0.28
Provision for deferred bonus 8.81 -
Provision for non-performing assets 15.47 12.27
Difference between book and tax depreciation - 0.11
85.47 71.44
Deferred tax liabilities on account of :
Amortised loan origination costs 63.22 60.70
Difference between book and tax depreciation 0.33 -
63.55 60.70
Net deferred tax assets 21.92 10.74
2.12 Long-term loans and advances
Secured
(considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Receivable from financing business
- considered good 5,137.10 7,753.65
5,137.10 7,753.65
Unsecured L
* (considered good, unless stated otherwise) ]
Receivables from financing business -
- considered good 2,434.03 151.88
- considered non performing assets 52.97 15.62
2,487.00 167.50
Security Deposits
Rental deposits 3.67 1.49
Other loans and advances :
Unamortiscd loan origination costs 78.59 85.73 {0
Advance income taxes (net of provision for Tax Rs 0.58 million; . J
Previous year Rs. 0.58 million) 0.05 0.05 ‘
2,569.31 254.77
7,706.41 8,008.42
2.13 Other non-current assets
Deferred Cansideration-onloan-transfertransacti 43-61 87
42.00

> Qg
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asat 31 March 2017

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

I
2,14  Cash and bank balances [
Cash and Cash equivalents \
Balances with Banks !
- in Current accounts 7.88 140.29 T
Other Banks Balances
- Short term deposits with banks 64.33 -
(Other bank deposits with maturity > 3 months and less than 12 months)
72.21 140.29
2,15  Short-term loans and advances
Secured
(considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Receivable from financing business
- considered good 4,005.08 516.38
Unsecured
(considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Receivables from financing business
- considered good 3,098.38 5,497.81
- considered non performing assets 9.00 24.14
3,107.38 5,521.95
Other loans and advances
Advances to others 0.03 -
Deposits- others 0.13 0.13
Prepaid expenses 0.74 0.11
Unamortised loan origination costs 104.09 89.66
Loans and advances to employees 0.42 -
Input tax credit 29.01 14.94 =
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 49.49 53.00 I
I
3,291.29 5,679.79 P
i
i
7,296.37 6,196.17 b
!. -
2.16  Other current assets 1
Accrued interest on fixed deposits 0.02 - |
Accrued interest on loans 17.18 543
Accrued interest on loans not due 188.31 150.62
Deferred Consideration on loan transfer transactions 158.83 22.71
364.34 178.76
P\SSO Cia[«@
e SN I\

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the veur ended 31 March 2017

(Currency - Indian Rupees in Millions)

2.17 Fee and commission income

Loan processing fees and other fees

2.18 Interest Income

On loans
On fixed deposits
On others

2.19 QOther income

Miscellaneous income

5th Floor,
Lodha Excelus,

fve) Apotle Miljs Compound.\ 3
. N. Mg .
M i,

Mumbai - 400 011

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

187.20 80.97
187.20 80.97
2,338.10 1,532.53
0.02 -
0.04 0.04
2,338.16 1,532.57
9.98 1.18
9.98 1.18




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2017

(Currency Indian Rupees in Millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
2.20 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages (refer note 2.28) 198.29 45.95
Contribution to provident and other funds 7.68 2.60
Staff welfare expenses 9.74 ' 0.77
215.71 49.32
2.21 Finance costs
Interest on debentures 434.60 291.40
Interest on Subordinated Debt 23.18 13.68
Interest on term loan 557.09 163.82 i
interest on bank overdraft 19.67 6.90 (
interest on loan from related party 112.07 27171 :
Discount on Non Convertible Debentures 9.72 6.33 ; h
Interest on shorifall in payment of Advance Income Tax 1.19 0.83 !
Bank charges 3.67 35.50 !
Interest - others - 2.99 !
]
1,161.19 793.16 '
2,22 Other expenses
Advertisement and business promotion 3.07 1.90
Auditors' remuneration (refer below) 1.62 0.81
Bad- debts and advances written off 225.54 1.78 !
Commission and brokerage 0.94 0.08 :
Communication 1.35 036 P
Computer software 0.05 0.23
Directors' sitting fees 0.40 -
Donation 0.50 0.05
L:lectricity charges (Refer note 2.28) 1.41 0.60
{.cgal and professional fees 149.12 159.63
L.oan origination costs amortised 196.18 90.48
Oitice expenses 1.60 2.87
Printing and stationery 1.63 0.73
Provision for standard assets 9.65 28.00
Provision for restructured advances 291 1.25
Provision for non performing assets (23.79) 26.69
Provision for credit loss on securitisation 30.14 5.60
Rities and taxes 0.27 0.19
Raing Support Fees 12.50 28.50
Rent (Refer note 2.28) 10.25 7.30
Repairs and maintenance - others 0.61 0.20
ROC expenses (0.07) 1.61
Service tax expenses 21.31 21.85
Stamp duty 7.73 7.88
Travelling and conveyance 9.39 3.02 :
Miscellaneous expenses 1.51 0.79 |
665.82 — 39240
Auditors' remuneration: ‘
Ior Statutory audit and limited review 1.43 0.70
I'or other services (certification) 0.08 0.08
For reimbursement of expenses 0.11 0.03
1.62
m
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued) i
For the year ended 31 March 2017 ’

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

2.23  Segment reporting

The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non Banking Financial Company engaged in the business of lending and financing, All !
other activities of the Company revolve around the main business. Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the b
Company is considered to operate only in the domestic segment.

As the Company’s business activity falls within a primary business segment, the financial statements are reflective of the information required under
Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies

(Aceounts) Rules 2014.

2.24  Related Parties as per AS 18

(i) List of related parties and relationship:

Name of related parties by whom control is
exercised

Fellow Subsidiaries
(with whom transactions have taken place)

Key Management Personnel

‘Edelcap Securities Limited - Holding Company

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited — Ultimate holding Company

Auris Corporate Centre Limited

ECL Finance Limited

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Edelweiss Business Services Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Web Services Limited)
EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known as EFSL Commodities Limited )
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (Formerly known as Arum Investments Private Limited)

Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited
Eternity Business Centre Limited
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Edelweiss Securities Limited

Mr. Arun Kumar Nayyar

(ii) Transactions with related parties :

o

SthFloor, N\
Lodha Excelus,
m Apolto Mills Compound,

N M i N rg.
Mumba?~ 700 011

g For the year ended  For the year ended
Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Capital Account Transaction during the year:
Equity shares issued to Edelcap Securities Limited - 96.00
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 46.92
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (Formerly known as 30,00 )
Arum Investments Private Limited) .
Securities premium received from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 623.97
Edelcap Securities Limited - 361.26
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (Formerly known as 234.00 )
Arum Investments Private Limited) '
Assignment of loan portfolio from Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 1,005.91 - -
Current account transactions:
Loans taken from (refer note 2.24A(2)) Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 333.02 2,426.90
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 3,472.40 -
Loans repaid to (refer note 2.24A(2)) Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 429.13 2,733.65
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 2,739.93 o -
EFSL Tra.d.mg lepted (Formerly known as EFSL 290.00 2,500.00
Commodities Limited )
Repayment of loans by (refer note 2.24A(2)) Edelweiss Securities Limited " 7.30
EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known as EFSL 1.03 15152
Interest expenses Commodities Limited ) ' ’
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.93 120.19
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 103.11 -
Legal & Professional Fees Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 48.87 57.51
Edelweiss Business Services Limited (Formerly known 0.24 )
as Edelweiss Web Services Limited) "
m on loan from Edelweiss Securities Limited
'S




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

{Currency: Indian rupees in Million)
(ii) Transactions with related parties (Continued)
. For the year ended  For the year ended
Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Reimbursement paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 65.76 180.88
Edelweiss Business Services Limited (Formerly known 71.84 0.01
as Edelweiss Web Services Limited) ' ’
Cost reimbursement paid lo Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.92 13.70
’ Edelweiss Business Services Limited (Formerly known 0.06 006
as Edelweiss Web Services Limited) ’ ’
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 0.32 1.74
Eternity Business Centre Limited 0.36 -
Commission & Brokerage Exps Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.95 -
Rent paid to Auris Corporate Centre Limited - 3.88
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 1.84 -
Eternity Business Centre Limited 5.88 -
Donation EdelGive Foundation 0.50 0.05
Rating fee paid Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 12.50 28.50
Remuneration paid to (refer note 2.24A(3) & Mr. Arun Kumar Nayyar
25.67 7.36
note 2.24A(4))
Director sitting fecs Mr. Mitul Shah 0.20 0.02
Mr. Sanjay Shah 0.20 0.02
Director nomination deposit received from  Edelcap Securities Limited 0.30 0.10
Prepaid Exps Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.71 -
Balances with related parties:
Liabilities
Short term borrowings trom Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 96.11
(refer note 2.24A(2) Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 732.47 -
Long term borrowings from (refer note EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known as EFSL 290.00
2.24A(2) Commodities Limited ) i )
Interest accrued and due on Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited - 5.45
borrowings from EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known as EFSL
o .. 0.49 1.70
Commodities Limited )
Trade Payables Auris Corporate Centre Limited - 4.05
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 32.63
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 51.46 60.10
Edelcap Securities Limited - 0.10
Edelweiss Business Services Limited (Formerly known 0.35 0.07
as Edelweiss Web Services Limited) i '
Nomination deposits - Payables Edelcap Securities Limited 0.60 -
T Advances to others Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited T 003 -
Nomination deposits - Receivables Edelcap Securities Limited 0.10 -
Assets
Remuneration payable to (refer note Mr. Arun Kumar Nayyar 11.00 7.00
2.24A(3) & note 2.24A(4))
Off Balance sheet itcm
Corporate guarantee taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 200.00

Note :

1

5th flo

P\bsOﬁr@'

2.24A

Previous year figures have been recasted / restated wherever necessary.
2 The Intra group Company loans are generally in the nature of revolving demand loans. Loan taken/repaid from/to related parties are disclosed based

defen
of,

5,

"on‘\the\maxxmum incremental amount taken and repaid during the reporting period.
n relating to remuneration paid to key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment and




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

(Currency: Indian rupces in Million)

2.25 Earnings per share

In accordance with Accounting, Standard 20 on eamings per shares as prescribed under Scction 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014., the comnputation of earnings per share is set out below:

Particulars

a) Shareholders earnings (as per statement of profit and loss)

b) Calculation of weighted average number of Equity Shares of Re 10 each:

- Number of cquity sharcs outstanding at the beginning of the year

- Number of cquity shares issued during the ycar

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based on the date
of issue of shares)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rupees) (a/b)

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

319.46 247.02

29,950,000 15,658,833

3,000,000 14,291,167

32,950,000 29,950,000

31,700,685 20,112,730

10.08 12.28

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive potential equity shares issued or outstanding as at 31 March 2017 and as at

31 March 2016.

2.26  Disclosure pursuant 1o Accounting Standard 15 (Revised)-Employee benefits

A) Defined contribution plan (Provident fund):

Amount of Rs.5.73 million (previous year: Rs.1.69 million) is recognised as expenses and included in “Employee benefit expenses”.

B) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity):

The following tables summarize the components of the nct employee benefit expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded

status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the Gratuity benefit plan,
Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expenses recognized in the statement of profit & loss

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Current serviee cost 0.86 0.60
Interest on delined benefit obligation 0.16 0.09
Past service cost - -
Actuarial losses 0.72 0.22
Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expenses' 1.74 091

Balance Sheet

Reconcilation of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) are as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Prescnt value of DBO at start of year 2.11 0.03
Interest cost 0.16 0.09
Curient service ccst 0.86 0.60
Employee Transfer in adjustment 0.03 1.17
Beneit paid (0.24) -

Actuarial (gain)/loss: 0.72 0.22
Present value of DBO at end of year 3.63 2.11

51h Floor,
Lothz Excelus,
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@D N. M 3DS 19,
M oo

Mumbai - 400 011




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued) :
For the year ended 31 March 2017 ;

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

2.26  Disclosure pursuani to Accounting Standard 15 (Revised)-Employee benefits (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year - -
Acquisition adjustment -
Expected retum on plan asset -
Contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial pain/(loss): -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -

Net liability / (asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 Marchi 2016

Present value of DBO 3.63 2.11
Fair valuc of plan assets - -

Amount recognized in balance sheet - (assets)/liability 3.63 2.11
Of which, short term provision 0.50 0.00

Experience adjustment :

As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Defined Benefit Obligation 3.63 2.11 0.03
Fair valuc of plan assets - - -
Surplus * (i)eficit) (3.63) (2.11) (0.03)
On plan irabilities: (gain) loss 0.57 0.17 NA*
* Being the tirst actuarial valuation
Principle actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date: ' )
As at Asat i
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 .
Discount rate current 6.60% 7.40% 3
Salary escalation current 7.00% 7.00% i
Employecs aitrition rate (based on categories) 13-60% 13-60% :
Monrtality Rate IALM 2006-08 (Ult.) [ALM 2006-08 !
(Ult) '
Expected average remaining working life of employees 3 year 4 year

2.27 Contingent liabilities and commitments

a) The Company has no contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date is Nil (Previous year: Nil).
Corporate gaurantee given by the Company in relation to securitisation transaction is Rs. 322.58 million (Previous year : Rs. 22.22 million )

The Company s pending litigations mainly comprise of claims against the Company pertaining to proceedings pending with income tax and other
authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required
and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements. The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings will
not have a matcrially adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations,

b) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account net of advances and not provided for is Rs. 1.02 million el
“(Previous Year Rs.0.90 million). - - - - - - S - - — — — — =

¢) Undrawn comstted credit lines Rs. 59.73 million as at balance sheet date (Previous year: Rs. 336.94 million).

2.28 Cost sharing

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the ultimate holding Company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like common senior
management compensation cost (FY 2015-16), Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit of itself
and its certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cost so expended is reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number
of employees, time spent by employees of other Companies, actual identifications etc. On the same lines, employees’ costs expended (if any) by the

Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Company. Accordingly, and as idenfified by the management, Uie eXpenaimre
heads in note .20 and 2.22 include reimbursements paid and are net of reimbursements received based on the management’s best estimate
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

{Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

2.29 Details of dues to micro enierprise and small enterprise

Trade payables includes Rs. Nil (Previcus vear: Rs. Nil) payable to “suppliers” registered under the micro, small and medium enterprises
Development Act, 2006 No intciest has been paid 7 is payable by the Company during the year to “‘suppliers” registered under this Act. The
aforeinentioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act

2.30 The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses.
At the year end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/ accounting standards for material
foreseeable losses on such long term contracts has been made in the books of aceounts. The Company has not entered into any derivatives contracts
during the year.

2.31 Details of Unsecured non-convertible red ble subordinated debt
Details of the unsecurcd debentures issued as at 31 March 2017
Rate of interest >3 Years 2 -3 Years 1-2 Years <1 Year Total
9.95% 120.00 - - - 120.00
11.50% 140.00 - - - 140.00
Total 260.00 - - - 260.00

Details of the unsecured debentures issued as at 31 March 2016

Rate of interest >3 Years 2-3 Years I-2Years <1 Year Total

11.50% : . 140.00 - - - : 140.00

2.32 Details of Secured non-convertible debentures issued

Following are details of the repayment terms of secured debentures issued

As at 31 March 2017

Rate of interest I <1 year [ 1-3 years [ > 3 years* l Total
Zero coupon bond 250.00 - - 250.00
9% 750.00 - 2,000.00 2,750.00
Total 1,000.00 - 2,000.00 3,000.00

*Premium on redemption of debentures amounting to Rs. 58.17 million payable at maturity is not included above.

As at 31 March 2016

Rate of intercst ] <] year | 1-3 years | >3 years [ Total
Zero coupon bond - 250.00 - 250.00 |
9% 2,000.00 750.00 2.000.00 4,750.00
Total 2,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 5,000.00
b) Debenture rcdcm}.)lim reserve is not created for 5;000-Seeuredredeemable non convertible debentures of face value of Rs. 1,000,000/- each

pursuant to the Rule 18(7)(b)((ii) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules. 2014 exempting NBFCs from creation of debenture
redemption reserve in respect ol privately placed debentures.

c) Debt equity and asset cover Ratio:
b Debt equity ratio

)

m Apollo Miils Compound,

s T T - U ) S G- e
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Shareholder's fund

Paid up capilal-cquity 329.50 299.50
Add: Reserve and surplus 2,805.43 2,311.13
Less: Deterred tax asset 21.92 10.74
Less : Deferrcd Revenue Expenditure (Loan Oniginating Cost) 182.68 175.39
Equity (A) 2,930.33 2,424.50
Debt

L ong-term hnrrnwing: 6,646.75 7,726 86
Short-term borrowings 1,751.00 556.35
Current matuiities of leng term debt 2,520.83 2,486.46
Debt ’ (B) 10,918.58 10,769.66
Debt equity ratio (B/A) .73 4.44
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

(Currency: Indian rupees in Millior}

2.33 Details of Secured non-convertible deb es issued (Continued)
c) Debt equity and asset cover Ratio:
i) Asset cover ratio
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Assets available
Loans and advauces (A) 14,736.56 13,959.49
Debt
Long-term sccured borrowings 6,386.75 7,296.86
Short-term sccured borrowings 1,018.53 460.24
Current maturities of secured long term debt 2,520.83 2,486.46
Total (B) 9,926.11 10,243.56
Asset cover (A/B) 1.48:1 1.36:1
2.34 Details of term loan from bank
As at 31 March 2017 Maturity
Rate of interest <1 Year 1-3 Years >3 Years Total
8.60 - 8.99% 562.50 1,125.00 434.95 2,121.55
9.00% to 9.99% 808.33 1,616.67 §28.13 3,253.13
10.00% to0 10.99% 150.00 300.00 24.73 474.73
Total 1,520.83 3,041.67 1,286.91 5,849.41
As at 31 March 2016
Rate of interest <1 Year 1 -3 Years >3 Years Total
9.00% 10 9.99% 100.00 175.00 - 275.00
10.00% 10 10.99% 386.46 2,274.98 1,846 88 4,508.31
Tota! 486.46 2,449.98 1,846.88 4,783.31

2.35 Foreign currency

The Company has not undertaken any foreign curiency transaction during the year ended 31 March 2017 (Previcus year:

2.36 Key ratios

The following table sets forth. for the periods indicated, the key financial ratios

Rs Nil).

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 Maich 2016

Gross NPAs as a percentage of total advance 0.42% 0.28%
Net NPAs as a percentage of total advance 0.36% 0.07%
Book value per share (Rs.)' 88.93 80.95
Current ratio® 1.42 1.61
Debt to equity ratio {refer note 2.32)" 3.73 4.44
Retu:n on average equity” (%) 11.93% 13.77%
Return on average asscts’ (%) 2.13% 2.44%

1. Book value per share = Equity share capital (+) Reserves and surplus (-) Deferred tax assets (-) Deferred Revenue Expenditvre

/Outstanding number of equity shares.
2. Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities.
3. Debt-Equity ratio ~ Total Debt/ Total Equity

Debt = Long term borrowings (+) Short term borrowings (+) Current maturity of long term borrowings |

Total Equity ~ quity Share Capital (+) Reserves and Surplus (-} Deferred tax asset (-) Deferred Revenue Expenditure P
4. Return on average equity = Profit for the year / [Annual average equity share capital (+) Annual average reserves and surplus less Deferred !
1ax asset}, -

5. Return on average asscts = Profit for the year / Annual average total assets.

2.37 Banking facilities
The Company has obtained borrowing facilities from below mentioned banks:

1 Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 7  Punjab & Sind Bank
2 DCB Bank 1.1 8 Punjab Nationa] Bank
3 HDIC Bank Lid 9  Bank of Maharashtra
4 United Bank o1 India 10 State Bank of India
5 Dena Bank 1t Karnataka Bank
6 Corporation Bank 12 Statc Bank of Patiala
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

(Currency: Indian rupees 1 Million)

2.38 Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
) CRAR (%) 18.67% 18.70%
if) CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 17.90% 17.68%
iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 0.77% 1.02%
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1I capital 260.00 140.00
v) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - -

2.39 Direct assignment & Securitisation

The Company sells loans throﬁgh securitisation and direct assignment.

The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of par transaction done during the year is given below :

Total number of {oan assets under par structure
Total book valuc ol loan assets
Sales consideration received

As at
31 March 2017
195
761.02
761.02

As at
31 March 2016

The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of transaction done on premium during the year is given below

Total number of loan assets under par structure
Total book valuc of loan assets
Sales consideration received

As at
31 March 2017
1752
52.16
52.70

As at
31 March 2016

Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of securitisation transactions as required under revised guidelines on securitization transactions

issued by RBI vide circular no.DNBS. PD.N0.301/3.10.01/2012-13 dated August 21, 2012

1 No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions
2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPV's sponsored by the NBFC
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of balance
sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- I'irst loss
- Others
b) On-balance sheet exposures
- First loss
- Others
4 Amount of expusures to assignment transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- Frst loss
- Others
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others
b) On-balance sheet exposures
" i)Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others

As at
31 March 2017
4
2,372.15
237.22

163.35

73.87

194,16

159.23

34.93

As at
31 March 2016
1
415.81

41.58

41.58

25.11

22.22

Amount of exposuics 10 assignment transactions other than MRR

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

1) No. of accounts

if) Aggrepate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC

i) Aggregale consideration

/v,_ W&ﬂ'onal consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
regatg gain / loss over net book value
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2617

(Currency: Indian rupees in Mili;on}

2.40  Details of non-performing fincncials assets purchased / sold
During the year the Company has neither purchased nor solc any non-performing financials assets. (Previous year : Nil)

2.41  Operating leases
The Company has taken premises on operating lease. Terms of the lease include terms for renewal, increase in rents in future periods and term of
cancellation. Gross renial expenses for the year ended 31 March 2617 aggregated to Rs.10.25 million (Previous year Rs. 7.30 million) which has
teen included under the hi:ad Other expeases — Rent in the statemert of profit and loss.

Details of future minimum Iease payments for the non-cancellable operaung lease are as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
- not later than one year 1.18 1.33
- later than one year and not later than five years - 118 |
- later than five year - -
Future minimum lease payments for the non-cancellable operating lease are before sharing of expenses with group companies.

Minimum lease payments for non cancellable lease

2.42 Exposure to real estate scctor, both direct and indirect & exposure to capital market
a) Exposure to real estate sector; both direct and indirect

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

A. Direct exposure

(i) Residential morigages -

Lending fully sécured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the 4.336.32 4,235.55
borrower or that is rented:(Individual housing loans up to Rs. 15 lakh may be shown
separately)

(ii) Commercial real estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office butldings, retail space, 4,839.75 4,001.17
multipurposc  commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted

commercial premises. industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and

construction. etc).

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
- Residential - -
- Commercia! :cal estate . R

B. Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National -Housing-Bank (NHB) and Housing~ - T T . -
Finance Companies (HFCs)

1

b) Exposure to capital mariet

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
1) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of - -
equity-oriented mutuai funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt

11) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals - - . !
for investment in shares (ncluding IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, cenvertible debentures,
and units of equity-orienied mutual funds

iif) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures . _ | H

or units of equity oricnted mutual funds are taken as primary security
iv

~

advances for any sther purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or - -
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where

the primary security otner than shares / converrible bonds / convertible debentures / units of E
equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advaixces e

v) secured and unsecurcd advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of - -
stockbrokers and market makers

vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other - - i

securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contrihution to the. equity of new companies i

=

in anticipation of raising resources )
vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - - o
}Uiﬁxﬂ;gg.gsures to Veature Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) - -

DBE0C) B
%}P"’ /‘3’(‘@
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)
2.43  Asset liability management

Maturity pattern of cert:in items of assets and liabilities

For the financial year 2016-17

Particulars Liabilities Assets
Borrowings from Borrowings from Advances Investments
banks others
I day to 20/31 days (One month) 279.63 146.49 696.85 -
Over One morith to 2 months 203.71 366.23 940,71 -
Over 2 months upto 3 months 915.40 219.74 1,689.55 -
Over 3 months 1o 6 monihs 380.21 750.00 1,281.17 -
Over 6 months to | year 760.42 250.00 2,504.18 -
Over 1 year 10 3 years 3,041.67 - 2,990.30 -
Over 3 years to 5 years 1,286.91 2,058.17 1,252.53 . -
Over 5 years - 260.00 3,381.27 -
Total 6,867.95 4,050.64 14,736.56 -
For the Financial Year 2015-16
Particulars Liabilities Assets
Borrowings from  Borrowings from Advances Investments
banks others

1 day to 30/31 days (One month) 25.00 - 286.87 -
Over One months to 2 months - 43,33 263.73 -
Over 2 months upto 3 months 52.08 173.84 1,760.23 -
Over 3 months to 6 months 77.08 168.94 1,256.75 -
Over 6 months to | vear 792.54 2,000.00 2,470.74 -
Over 1 year 10 2 years 2,450.00 1,000.00 1,058.35 -
Over 3 years to 5 years 1,846.85 2,000.00 1,569.04 -
Over 5 years - 140.00 5,293.78 -
Total 524355 - 5,526.11 13,959.49 -

2.44 Movements in non performing advances:
The following table scis forth. for the periods indicated, the details of movement of gross Non-performing assets (NPAs), net NPAs and

provision
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
i)  Net NPAs to net advances (%) 0.36% 0.07%
ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 39.76 1.40
b) Additions during the year 54.37 40.10
c¢) Reductions during the year (32.16) 1.74
d) Closing balance 61,97 39.76
iii) Movement of net NPA
a) Opening balai:ce I X A T
b) Additions durmng the year 46.55 10.21
¢) Reductions duriny. the ycar (3.46) 0.29
d) Closing batance 53.01 9.92
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets)
a) Opening balance 29.84 1.40
b) Additions during the year 7.82 29.89
c) Reductions during the year (28.70) 1.45
d) Closing balance 8.96 2984
2.45  Details of si

r'ngﬁjfuﬁyéh{;‘gu ot
3 . .
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Edelweiss Retail Finance {imited

Notes to the financial statemeants (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

2.46 Details of 'provisions and contingencies’

in statement of profit and loss.

i)  Provisions for depreciation on investment

iii) Provision made towards income tax
iv)  Provision for standard assets
v)  Other provision and contingencies
a) Provision for credit loss on securitisation

ii)  Provision towards NPA (inciude Restructured assets)

Break up of 'provisions and pontingencies' shown under the head expenditure

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

(20.88) 27.94
181.01 145.53
9.65 28.00
30.14 5.60

2.47 Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

A) Concentration of advances

Total advances to twenty fargest borrowers

C) Concentration of NPAs
Total exposures to top four NPAs

D) Sector-wise NPAs

1 Agriculture & allied activities
2 MSME

3 Corporate borrowers

4 Serviees

S Unsecured personal loans

6 Auto loans

7 Other persona: loans

% of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances

B) Concentration of exposures (includes Off balance sheet exposure)
Total exposures Lo twenty iargest borrowers / customers
9% of exposures to iwenly argest borrowers / customers Lo total advances

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

1,307.27 920.04
8.87% 6.59%
1,307.27 920.04
8.65% 6.59%

' 36.59 10.35

% of NPAs to total advances in that
sector

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.43% 0.37%
0.41% 0.65%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 9.00%
0.00% 0.00%

2.48 Customer complaints

(@) No. of compiaiits pending at the beginning of the year

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

52 8

Lodha Excelus,
Apolio Aills Compound,

N. M.dBsbitarg.
M

Mumb, - 330 011

(b) No. of complaints received during the year
(¢) No. of compizints ~edressed during the year 52 :
(d) No. of complaints pending at the cnd of the year - - { R
!
2.49 Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies
As at 31 March 2017
_ |Instrument category _ CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks
i) Long term instruments ;
Rating CRISIL AA/Stable [ICRA] AA CARE AA BWR AA+ !
Amount 10,000.00 31,500.00 5,500.00 4,500.00 ‘
ii) Short term instruments
Rating - [ICRA] A1+ CARE Al+ -
Amount 6,000.00 5,000.00
As at 31 March 2016
Instrument category ICRA CARE Brickworks
i) Long term instruments .
Rating [ICRA] AA CARE AA BWR AA+
Amount 22,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
m?ns urins
WT\ [ICRA] Al+ CARE Ai+ -
&= 5t Agpguan $ | 6.000.00 5,000.00
<
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Edelweiss Retail Finance L.imited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued) ;
For the year ended 31 March 2017 !

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million}
2.51  Corporate social responsibilty { CSR)
As per the provisions of Secticsi 135 of Companies Act 2013,

a) Gross Amount required tc b spert by the Company during the year was Rs. 3.80 million; (Previous ycar Rs. 0.86 million)
b) Amount spent during the year on :

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in Total
cash
i Construction/ acquisition of any assets - . -

i on purpose other than (i) above 0.50 - 0.50
(0.05) - (0.05)

1. The Company is a subsidiary of Edelcap Securities Limited and ultimate holding Company is Edelweiss Financial Services Limited. Edelweiss group is conscious
of its Corporate Social Responsibility and, had accordingly established 2 CSR arm, "EdelGive Foundation” in the year 2008. As an amount of Rs. 115.68 million
(representing more. than 2% ol the consolidated profit of the group) was spent towards CSR activities during the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has not
incuired the prescribed CSR expenditure on a standalone basis during the year ended March 31, 2017.

2. Figures in bracket arc in respect of previous year.

2.52  Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators - Nil
2.53  Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators - Nil

2.54  Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company

Nore to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction- Non-Banking Finansial
Company- Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. (Figures are as at 31 March
2017) .

Liabilities side:

Amount outstanding Amount overdue
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
1) Loans and advances availed by NBFC inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid
a) Debentures:
(other than those falling within the ineaning of Public deposit)
(i) Secured 3,267.15 5,291.65 - -
(ify  Unsecured 296.86 153.68 - -
b) Deferred credits - - - -
c) lerm loans 5,849.41 4,783.31 - -
d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - - - !
e) Commercial paper - - - - i
f) Other loans - - - - !
1) Loan from related parties 732.97 393.27 - - i
2) Bank overdraft 1,018.53 460.24 - -
{* Please see note | below, !
Assets side: Amount Outstanding
As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
2) Break up of loans and advances including bills receivables
(other than those included in (3) below)
a) Secured 9,142.18 8,270.03
b) Unsecured 5,594.38 5,689.46

3) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities . - -
a) Lease assets including icase rentals under sundry debtors: .

(i) Financial lease - - A

(i) Operating lease - - .

b) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(i) Assets on hire - R
(ii) Repossessed assets - . ;

3 i sk s-ghseits P
&) QOther loans CouRHREt s . paty-Retivities

3
(i)  Loans where asscis have been repossessed - - ;
(1)  Other loans - - '

5th Fioor,
¢n/  Lodha Excelus,
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

(Currancy: Indian nipees in Million)
2.55  Note to the balance sheet 0! ¢ na

Company- Systematically
2017)

n-deposit taking non-banking financial Company as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial
Impostant Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bask) Directions, 2016. (Figures are as at 31 March

4) Break up of investments
Current investments:

a) Quoted:
(i)  Shares Equit:
Preference
(if)  Debentures anc bonds
(i1i)  Units of mutua; funds
(iv) Government sectirities
(v) Others

b) Unquoted:
(i)  Shares: Equity
Preference
(ii) Debentures and bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Govemment securities
(v) Others (pass through certificates)

Long-term invesiments (nct of provision)

a) Quoted:
(i)  Shares: Equiiy
Preference
(ii)  Debentures ai bonds
(iii)  Units of mutuai {unds
(iv) Government sceurnities
(v) Others

b) Unguoted:
(i)  Shares: Equity
Preference
(i) Debentures and honds
(iif)  Units of mutua! funds
(iv) Govenunent sceurities
(v) Others
- Pass through certificates
- Security receipts

5) Borrower group-wise class:fication of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above
Secured

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Particulars

. Related parties**
(a) Subsidiaries - R
(b) Companies in the
same group
(c) Other related parties - .

31 March 2017

Amount net of provisions
Unsecured

As at As at

31 March 2016

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

Total

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

(a) Subsidiaries

1es in the same group
P\@{Sé\ h})?lated\pames
Q‘ #E ag ré ¢ pa\&
a -

EKCQIU:

2. Other than related 9,142.18 8,270.03 5,594.38 5,689.46 14,736.56 13,959.49
TOTAL 9,142.18 8.270.03 5,594.38 5,689.46 14,736.56 13,959.49
** As per Accounting Standard of ICA1
6) Tnvestor group-wise clasaification of all investments (current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)
Book value
Particulars Market value/break up or fair value or NAV (net of provisions)
Asar Asar Asat #sat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
1) Related parties

(%)
m .«pollo Milis Compount.\ =Q
i N M J iMarg %*




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

2.56

“Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Dircction-

Non-Banking

Financial Company- Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking'Comparny (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. (Figures arc as at il
‘March 2017) i

a)

7) Other information

Particulars

Gross non-performing assets
1) Related parties

As at Asat
31 March 2016

31 March 2017

39.76

2) Other than related parties 61.97
b) Net non-performing assets

1) Related parties - -

2) Other than related parties 53.01 9.92
c) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -
Note :

1. As defined in paragraph 2(1)(xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Compnay Acceptance of public deposits(Reserve bank) Direction,1998.

Disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes* (SBNs) held and transacted during the period from 08th November to 30th December 2016 pursaunt to
notification no. G.S.R. 308(E) dated 30th March 2017

Particulars SBNs* Other denomination notes Total
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 2.13 0.00 2.13
(+) Permitted receipts - 0.42 0.42
(-) Permitted payments - - -
(-) Amount deposited in Banks 2.13 0.42 2.55
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 0.00~ 0.00"

~- Amount is less than 0.01 million

* For the purposes of this clause, the term specified bank notes (SBNs) means the bank notes of denomination of existing series of the value of five hundred rupees
and one thousand rupees as defined under the notification of Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs No. 5.0.3407(E),
dated 8th November 2016.

As per our report attached on even date
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